
The Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin 

Regular Council Meeting

October 1, 2025 

1



CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH ALGONQUIN 

AGENDA 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Wednesday, October 1, 2025 9:00 a.m.     

Council Chambers 

Municipal Office 

7 Third Avenue 

Whitney, Ontario 

And ZOOM and You Tube Channel: South Algonquin Council 

1. Open Meeting/Call to order – 9:00 a.m.

2. Roll Call

3. Land Acknowledgement

We acknowledge that we are gathered on the unceded Traditional Territory of the Algonquin Anishinaabeg 

people, specifically the Matouweskarini (people of the Madawaska River).  We further acknowledge that the 

Algonquin People have been stewards of this land since time immemorial and we strive to treat the land along 

with the flora and fauna it supports, the people, their customs and traditions, with honour and respect.  Today, 

this area is home to people of all walks of life, and we acknowledge the shared opportunities and 

responsibilities to live, work and survive within this beautiful territory. 

Chi-miigwetch, All my relations 

4. Additions / Amendments to the Agenda

5. Adoption of the Agenda

Moved by: Seconded by:  Res. # 25- 

THAT:  Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin adopts the Agenda as circulated for 

the Regular Council Meeting of October 1, 2025. 

6. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest or a General Nature Thereof

7. Petitions, Delegations and/or Presentations: None

8. Minutes of Previous Meetings (s)

• Adopt the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of September 3, 2025

Moved by: Seconded by:  Res. # 25- 

THAT: Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin adopts the minutes of the Regular 

Council Meeting of September 3, 2025 as circulated. 

• Adopt the Minutes of the Asset Management Committee Meeting of September 17, 2025

Moved by: Seconded by:    Res. # 25- 

THAT: Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin adopts the minutes of the Asset 

Management Committee Meeting of September 17, 2025 as circulated. 

2



Adopt the Minutes of the Waste Management Committee Meeting of September 17, 2025 

Moved by: Seconded by: Res. # 25- 

THAT: Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin adopts the minutes of the Waste 

Management Committee Meeting of September 17, 2025 as circulated. 

9. Committee, Staff and/or Councillor Reports

10. Business Arising from the Minutes

11. Unfinished Business

12. Correspondence – Action Items

13. Correspondence – Information Items

14. New Business

15. Motions of Council

16. By-Laws 

17. Resolution to Move into a “Closed Session”

18. Adjournment

Moved by:     Seconded by:     Res. # 25- 

THAT:  Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin adjourns the Regular Council Meeting 

of October 1, 2025 at ______. 

3



 

1 
 

 

September 3, 2025 

COUNCIL MEETING – MINUTES 

On Wednesday, September 3, 2025, the Council for the Corporation of the Township of South 

Algonquin held a Regular Hybrid Council Meeting via Zoom and in Chambers, which was 

streamed to YouTube. 

 

In Chambers:     

Mayor Ethel LaValley  

Councillor Collins 

Councillor Joe Florent 

Councillor Joan Kuiack                                                          

Councillor Shawn Pigeon                            

Councillor Laurie Siydock 

Councillor Bill Rodnick     

 

Staff:     Bryan Martin, CAO/Clerk-Treasurer  

              Tracy Cannon, Deputy CAO/Deputy Clerk-Planner 

                

1.  OPEN MEETING/CALL MEETING TO ORDER:  

Mayor LaValley called the meeting to order at 9:04 a.m.  

   

2. ROLL CALL 

 

3. LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

4. ADDITIONS/AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA: None 

 

5.  ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Moved by: Councillor Collins       Seconded by: Councillor Siydock      Res. # 25-555 

THAT:  Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin adopts the Agenda as 

circulated for the Regular Council Meeting of September 3, 2025. 

-Carried- 

 

6. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST OR A GENERAL NATURE THEREOF: 

None 

 

7. PETITION, DELEGATION AND/OR PRESENTATIONS: None 

 

8. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

Moved by: Councillor Florent         Seconded by: Councillor Kuiack           Res. # 25-556 

THAT: Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin adopts the minutes of 

the Regular Council Meeting of July 2, 2025 as circulated. 

-Carried- 

 

Moved by: Councillor Collins      Seconded by: Councillor Pigeon           Res. # 25-557 

THAT: Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin adopts the minutes of 

the Human Resources/Administration/Public Relations Committee Meeting of July 16, 2025 as 

circulated. 

-Carried- 

 

Moved by: Councillor Siydock      Seconded by: Councillor Rodnick              Res. # 25-558 

THAT: Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin adopts the minutes of 

the Waste Management Committee Meeting of July 16, 2025 as circulated. 

-Carried- 

 

9. COMMITTEE REPORTS, STAFF AND/OR COUNCILLOR REPORTS: 

 

M&L Parks & Recreation Committee 

M&L Parks and Recreation Committee Minutes of June 10, 2025 & July 8, 2025 were provided 

in the council package. 

 

 

 

 

4



 

2 
 

Whitney Recreation Committee  

Whitney Recreation, Minutes of Minutes of July 17, 2025 were provided in the council package. 

• Committee working on the Fall Festival scheduled for October 5, 2025. 

 

Waste Management Report  

• Steve Ronholm, Works Superintendent, submitted a written report recommending that the 

implementation of bag-tag fees be postponed until January 2026, aligning with the 

implementation of the recycling program that will be run by the Province. Consensus was 

to proceed with the January 2026 implementation date. 

 

Council Reports 

 

Councillor Siydock: 

• Provided an update from the first Police Service Board meeting on August 11, 2025.  
T. Cannon to follow up with MTO regarding the electronic speed sign at the OPP station, 

which has not been functioning all summer.  

Councillor Collins:  

• Provided an update from the Lyell/Cross Lake cottage association annual meeting held on 

the Civic Holiday. 

Councillor Pigeon: 

• There is a washout between Madawaska and Aylen Lake that needs necessary repairs to 

open this season.  Councillor Florent will raise the issue of the trail repairs during a 

meeting scheduled tomorrow with Jason Dwyer, Manager of Operations for Algonquin 

Provincial Park, regarding the closure of Opeongo River Provincial Park.  

Mayor LaValley: 

• Provided an update on the AMO Conference, which she attended alongside B. Martin. 

 

10. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES: None 

 

11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  

Councillor Kuiack mentioned the following items; 

• Recommended that Council begin work on housing initiatives. 

• Recommended that Council initiate discussions on how to mitigate the shortfall resulting 

from the 5.2% tax increase. 

• Inquired about the status of the Bear Mountain Trailhead parking. Staff advised that the 

matter will be brought forward at an upcoming Economic Development Committee 

meeting. 

• Inquired about the status of the Township assuming maintenance responsibilities for the 

Madawaska Cenotaph. Staff advised that this will be considered during budget 

deliberations. 

• Inquired whether the previously passed resolution to the Ministry of Transportation 

regarding speed reduction had been sent out. Staff confirmed the resolution had been 

sent. 

 

12. CORRESPONDENCE-Action Items 

• Resolution of Support; RE: Municipality of Tweed, Challenges Faced By Small Rural and 

Northern Communities. 

• Resolution of Support; RE: Municipality of West Nipissing. Moratorium on Aerial 

Spraying. 

• Resolution of Support; RE: Township of Otonabee-South Monaghan, amendments to Bill 

C-2, Section 77.5. 

• Resolution of Support; RE: Township of Nairn and Hyman, Opposition to the 

Transportation and Disposal of Niobium Tailings at the Agnew Lake Tailings. 

• Resolution of Support; RE: City of North Bay, Northern Ontario Resource Development 

Support (NORDS) Pilot Program. 

• 6) Resolution of Support; RE: FONOM, Nation-Building 2+1 Highway Initiative in 

Northern Ontario. 

 

 

 

 

5



 

3 
 

13.  CORRESPONDENCE-Information Items Received and Filed; 

• Draft July 9, 2025 Municipal Dog Pound Board Minutes.  

• FONOM RE: Canadian Softwood Lumber. 

• St. Francis Valley Healthcare Foundation RE: Emergency Department. Redevelopment & 

Enhancement of Ambulatory Care Service Project Update. 

• MMAH RE: Save The Date - 2025 Northeastern Municipal Council Workshop. 

• St. Francis Valley Healthcare Foundation RE: Thank You Letter & Receipt for M & L 

Recreation Committee Trivia Night Donation. 

• Destination North RE: Tourism Sprint Program. 

 

14. NEW BUSINESS:  

• Councillor Florent provided a Notice of Motion for the October 1, 2025 Regular Council 

Meeting regarding a 10-year moratorium on wind turbines within the Township.  

 

15. MOTIONS OF COUNCIL:   

Moved by:  Councillor Florent        Seconded by:  Councillor Collins            Res. # 25-559                                      

THAT: Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin supports the letter from 

the Municipality of Tweed addressing the challenges faced by small rural and northern 

communities; and 

THAT this resolution, together with a copy of the letter, be forwarded to Minister Flack, Minister 

of Municipal Affairs and Housing; Minister Bethlenfalvy, Minister of Finance; Minister 

Thompson, Minister of Rural Affairs; MPP Billy Denault; Robin Jones, President of AMO; and 

Christa Lowry, President of ROMA. 

-Carried- 

 

Council reached consensus to incorporate a friendly amendment to include MP Cheryl Gallant in 

the following motion. 

 

Moved by: Councillor Florent    Seconded by: Councillor Kuiack            Res. # 25-560 

THAT: Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin endorses the resolution 

passed by the Municipality of West Nipissing requesting a moratorium on aerial spraying, and 

further urges that such a moratorium be extended to include the Township of South Algonquin; 

and 

THAT this resolution, along with a copy of the West Nipissing’s resolution, be forwarded to Mike 

Harris Jr., Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry; Sylvia Jones, Minister of Health; MPP, 

Billy Denault; Robin Jones, President of AMO; Christa Lowry, President of ROMA; Bancroft, 

Minden Forestry Office; and MP Cheryl Gallant. 

-Carried- 

 

Moved by: Councillor Florent Seconded by: Councillor Pigeon              Res. # 25-561                                        

THAT: Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin authorizes the signing 

and circulation of the draft letter, prepared by FONOM in support of the Nation-Building 2+1 

Highway initiative in Northern Ontario. 

-Carried- 

 

Moved by: Councillor Florent Seconded by: Councillor Kuiack              Res # 25-562 

THAT: Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin endorses the resolution 

passed by the Township of Otonabee-South Monaghan pertaining to Bill C-2, section 77.5; and 

THAT this resolution, along with a copy of the Township of Otonabee-South Monaghan’s 

resolution be forwarded to the Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM); the Ontario 

Municipal Association; the Minister of Finance, Emma Harrison; MP Cheryl Gallant, and the 

Ontario Chamber of Commerce. 

-Carried- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6



 

4 
 

Moved by: Councillor Florent  Seconded by:  Councillor Rodnick            Res # 25-563 

THAT: Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin endorses the resolution 

passed by the Township of Nairn and Hyman pertaining to the opposition to the Transportation 

and Disposal of Niobium Tailings at the Agnew Lake Tailings Management; and 

THAT this resolution, along with a copy of the Township of Nairn and Hyman’s resolution be 

forwarded to the Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario; Stephen Lecce, Minister of Energy 

and Mines; Prabmeet Singh Sarkaria, Minister of Transportation; Todd J. McCarthy, Minister of 

the Environment, Conservation and Parks; the Ontario Ombudsman; the Canadian Nuclear Safety 

Commission; MP Cheryl Gallant; MPP Billy Denault; and the Association of Ontario 

Municipalities. 

-Carried- 

 

Moved by: Councillor Florent    Seconded by: Councillor Collins      Res # 25-564 

THAT: Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin endorses the resolution 

passed by the City of North Bay pertaining to the Northern Ontario Resource Development 

Support (NORDS) pilot program to address municipal infrastructure pressures from natural 

resource sector activities; and 

THAT this resolution, along with a copy of the City of North Bay’s resolution be forwarded to the 

Minister of Agriculture, Food and Agribusiness; Minister of Infrastructure; Minister of Natural 

Resources; MPP Billy Denault; and Rural Ontario Municipal Association (ROMA). 

-Carried- 

 

Council reached consensus to incorporate a friendly amendment to include Mike Harris Jr., 

Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry in the following motion. 

 

Moved by: Councillor Florent    Seconded by: Councillor Siydock       Res # 25- 565 

WHEREAS the Township of South Algonquin recognizes the importance of preserving the natural 

environment, including the river and shoreline habitat within the boundaries of Opeongo River 

Provincial Park; and 

WHEREAS the Township also acknowledges the historic, recreational, and cultural significance 

of two long-established motorized trails within the park, one of which has been in continuous use 

for over 100 years, and another for at least 50 years; and 

WHEREAS one of the trails in question follows a route historically used by horse and wagon, then 

by motor vehicles, and currently by all-terrain vehicles (ATVs), and provides access to an area 

known locally as the "5 Mile," which holds significant local and historical value tied to the era of 

river log drives; and 

WHEREAS the proposed closure of these trails to motorized access would adversely impact 

individuals with limited mobility, including seniors and others who rely on ATVs to access 

recreational and hunting areas; and 

WHEREAS the closures are being justified under environmental preservation and policy 

alignment, despite the park’s status as non-operational, and without clear evidence that low-impact 

motorized use has caused significant harm to the integrity of the river and shoreline habitats; and 

WHEREAS the Township of South Algonquin was not consulted during the planning or decision-

making process regarding the proposed closures, nor was public consultation conducted to gather 

community input; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council for the Corporation of the Township of 

South Algonquin opposes the closure of motorized access to the two established trails within 

Opeongo River Provincial Park, and calls for a full public consultation process in which the 

Township is actively involved prior to any final decisions being made; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Council for the Corporation of the Township of South 

Algonquin urges the Ontario Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks, along with 

Ontario Parks, to pause any implementation of the proposed closures and to immediately begin 

meaningful consultations with municipal leaders, local stakeholders, and the broader public; and 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to Todd McCarthy, 

Minister of the Environment Conservation and Parks; Billy Denault, MPP; Jason Dwyer, Manager 

of Operations, Algonquin Provincial Park and Jennifer Hoare, Zone Ecologist, Ontario Parks, 

Algonquin Zone and Mike Harris Jr., Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry. 

-Carried- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7



 

5 
 

16. BY-LAWS:   

Moved by: Councillor Collins      Seconded by: Councillor Kuiack        Res. # 25-566 

THAT:  

1) By-Law 2025-843 Amending Agreement for Integrity Commissioner 

2) By-Law 2025-844 Conditional Contribution Agreement with Northern Ontario Heritage 

Fund Corporation 

3) By-Law 2025-845 to Confirm the Proceedings of Council 

 

BE READ A FIRST TIME AND BE DEEMED READ A SECOND TIME 

-Carried- 

 

Moved by: Councillor Kuiack          Seconded by: Councillor Rodnick          Res. # 25- 567 

THAT:  

1) By-Law 2025-843 Amending Agreement for Integrity Commissioner 

2) By-Law 2025-844 Conditional Contribution Agreement with Northern Ontario Heritage   

Fund Corporation 

3) By-Law 2025-845 to Confirm the Proceedings of Council 

BE READ A THIRD TIME AND PASSED 

-Carried- 

 

17. CLOSED SESSION: None 

 

18. ADJOURNMENT: 

Moved by: Councillor Florent      Seconded by: Councillor Rodnick           Res. # 25-568 

THAT:  Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin adjourns the Regular 

Council Meeting of September 3, 2025 at 10:30 a.m. 

-Carried- 

 

The next regular council meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, October 1, 2025 at 9:00 a.m. 

 

 

_________________                                            ___________________________        

Mayor Ethel LaValley                               CAO/Clerk-Treasurer Bryan Martin                                                    

8



 

1 
 

TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH ALGONQUIN 

ASSET MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING – MINUTES 

 

On Wednesday, September 17, 2025 the Asset Management Committee held an in-person and 

Zoom Meeting, livestreamed to YouTube.   

 

Council Present:                        

Mayor Ethel LaValley 

Councillor Sandra Collins                     

Councillor Joe Florent, Chair      

Councillor Joan Kuiack      

Councillor Shawn Pigeon      

Councillor Laurie Siydock  

Councillor Bill Rodnick    

                                   

Township Staff Present: 

Bryan Martin, CAO, Clerk-Treasurer 

Tracy Cannon, Deputy CAO/Deputy Clerk-Planner, Recording Secretary 

Steven Ronholm, Works Superintendent 

Aurel Thom, Fire Chief/CEMC 

Charlene Alexandar, CEO/Head Librarian/Grant Writing 

 

Regrets: Michael Anderson, CBO/BLEO 

 

Chair of the Asset Management Committee, Councillor Florent called the meeting to order at 

9:02 a.m. 

  

ROLL CALL: All Present  

 

LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

ADDITIONS/AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA:   

Unfinished Business  

• Councillor Florent Update – Meeting Regarding Closure of Trails within the Opeongo 

River Provincial Park. 

• Financial Strategy  

• EV Charging Station Update 

 

New Business 

• “B” Trail Washout  

 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Moved by: Mayor LaValley                       Seconded by: Councillor Kuiack 

To adopt the agenda as circulated and amended.  

 

DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST or a GENERAL NATURE THEREFORE: 

None 

 

STAFF REPORTS: 

Aurel Thom, Fire Chief/CEMC provided a Monthly Fire/ CEMC Report 

Verbally Reported; 

• Update on the training requirements and costs for firefighters. Currently the township has 

approximately fifteen firefighters requiring certification.  

• Emergency Management Tabletop scheduled for October 16th 9:00 a.m. 

• Staff will research sample policies for Cooling/Warmer Centres. 

• The draft Burning By-Law will be presented at the October 1st Council Meeting. 

• A resolution will be brought forward at the October 1st Council meeting to declare a snowmobile 

surplus and advertise it for sale on GovDeals.  

 

Charlene Alexander, CEO/Head Librarian/Grant Writer provided a Library Report, Minutes of 

May 27th, 2025 Board Meeting and Grant Writing Report. 

Verbally Reported;   

• Will investigate available firefighter training grants. 

• Steady flow of residents visiting the office for services such as photocopying, faxing, and 

laminating. 

•  Staff collaborated with Bill Smith at CRC to pursue an additional senior’s grant. 

9



 

2 
 

• All information has been sent off and the Canada Summer Employee Grant is now closed. 

• Consensus was to reapply for the OTF Capital Grant – Privy Accessibility Upgrades. 

 

Steve Ronholm, Works Superintendent provided a Works Department Report  

Verbally Reported; 

• No further updates on the Blue Box Program. 

• A resolution will be brought forward at the October 1st Council meeting to declare the grader 

surplus and advertise it for sale on GovDeals  

• Brushing will resume once capital projects are complete. 

• Staff continue to work with MNRF to obtain the necessary work permit for an expansion of the 

Tom & Mick Murray Boat Launch. 

 

Michael Anderson, CBO/BLEO provided a Building/By-Law Report 

• The Committee to review the draft Dog By-Law and provide feedback to M. Anderson. 

It will need to be determine whether dog tags should remain valid for the lifetime of the dog or 

be renewed annually. 

• Staff will investigate the purchase of new signage to replace existing "No Dogs Allowed" signs 

in parks and at beaches. The new signage will allow that dogs but they must be leashed at all 

times. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:   

Councillor Florent Update – Meeting Regarding Closure of Trails within the Opeongo 

River Provincial Park 

• Councillor Florent provided an update on a meeting he attended with Jason Dwyer and 

Jennifer Hoare of Algonquin Park, along with four stakeholders. B. Martin spoke with 

MPP Billy Denault, who is aware of the closure. MPP Denault has also raised the issue 

with the Minister. 

 

Financial Strategy  

Discussion on how the township will sustain the shortfall in the Financial Strategy. 

• Further discussion will take place during budget deliberations. 

• Advocating to the Provincial and Federal governments for increased funding, while 

actively applying for available grants to support local initiatives and infrastructure 

needs.  

• Financial stability should be given to the long-term maintenance and replacement of any 

new service or piece of equipment added by the Township. 

• Staff will circulate a pie chart illustrating the allocation of tax dollars, helping residents 

understand that the Township is required to fund other agencies.   

 

EV Charging Station Update 

• No update at this time. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

“B” Trail Washout  

• B. Martin will coordinate with the lead agency overseeing the trail repairs. The 

Township will offer in-kind support.  Councillor Pigeon will reach out to Opeongo 

Snowbirds advising of the support offering. 

 
Moved by: Councillor Collins                     Seconded by: Councillor Siydock 

To adjourn the Asset Management Committee meeting of September 17, 2025, at 11:10 a.m. 

-Carried- 

 

 

____________________________                            ___________________________________       

Bryan Martin, CAO/Clerk Treasurer     Councillor Joe Florent/Chairperson                        

            

10



1 

TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH ALGONQUIN 

WASTE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING – MINUTES 

On Wednesday, September 17, 2025 the Waste Management Committee held a hybrid meeting, 

livestreamed to YouTube immediately following the Asset Management Committee Meeting 

In Chambers:  

Mayor Ethel LaValley 

Councillor Sandra Collins    

Councillor Joe Florent  

Councillor Joan Kuiack  

Councillor Shawn Pigeon  

Councillor Bill Rodnick, Chair 

Councillor Laurie Siydock 

Township Staff Present: 

Bryan Martin, CAO, Clerk-Treasurer 

Tracy Cannon, Deputy CAO, Deputy Clerk-Planner 

Steve Ronholm, Works Superintendent 

Aurel Thom, Fire Chief/CEMC 

Chair of the Waste Management Committee, Councillor Rodnick called the meeting to order at 

11:21 a.m. 

ROLL CALL: All present  

ADDITIONS/AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA: None 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Moved by: Mayor LaValley   Seconded by: Councillor Pigeon 

To adopt the agenda of September 17, 2025 as circulated.  

DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST or a GENERAL NATURE THEREOF: 

None  

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

• Staff will look at the layout of the landfill sites to increase the sight line for the Landfill

Attendant.

NEW BUSINESS: 

Commercial Bin Pick-up Fee 

• Consensus was to maintain the current approach of charging for additional commercial

pickup on a per pickup basis, rather than per bin. Staff will continue monitoring and

assessing the process.

Fall/Winter Waste Collection Calendar 

• Staff circulated the collection calendar that will be going out to residents mid October.

Scrap Metal Pickup 

• Staff will contact additional scrap metal collection companies to obtain revenue quotes.

Moved by:  Councillor Florent                               Seconded by: Mayor LaValley 

To adjourn the Waste Management Committee meeting of September 17, 2025 at 12:01 p.m. 

______________________________      _______________________________________ 

Bryan Martin, CAO, Clerk-Treasurer        Councillor Bill Rodnick/Chairperson

11



COUNCIL MEETING 
October 1, 2025

COMMITTEE/STAFF REPORTS: 

1) M&L Parks and Recreation, RE:  Minutes of August 12, 2025 and 

Agenda of September 9, 2025.

2) Request to Purchase Shore Road Allowance – 23 Windmill Point Lane; 

SRA.2025-001.

3) Request to Purchase Shore Road Allowance – 50 Galeairy Lake Road; 
SRA.2025-002.

4) Request to Purchase Shore Road Allowance – 72 Galeairy Lake Road; 
SRA.2025-003.

5) Request to Purchase Shore Road Allowance – 79 Galeairy Lake Road; 
SRA.2025-004.

6) Whitney Recreation Agenda & Minutes of September 10, 2025

7) Steve Ronholm, Works Department Report RE; 2025 Capital Project –

Major Lake Road Resurfacing Project Tender Results and Options

12



13



CORPORATION OF THE 
TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH ALGONQUIN 

AGENDA 

Murchison & Lyell Parks and Recreation Committee 

Tuesday September 9, 2025 at 7:00 pm. 
At the Madawaska Community Hall 

1. Call meeting to order.
2. Reading & approval of the Agenda plus any additions.
3. Approval of August 12th, 2025 minutes and any amendments.
4. Business arising from minutes.
5. Reports: a) Councillor’s Report.

b) No committee Reports.
c) Financial Report- Balance at the end of August 2025 $xxxxx

 New Business. 
6. Performance Measurement – Event tracking sheet for August 2025.
7. Resolutions.
8. Fall Fun Fair. September 21st.
9. Fall Sell Your Wares. November 2nd.
10. Kids’ Club reboot?
11. Halloween Night candy giveaway.
12. Budget clean up for 2025 and Requests for 2026.
13. Adjournment.

Next meeting Tuesday October 14th, 2025 at 7:00 pm at the Madawaska Community Hall. 

14



 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2025 

Staff Contact: Tracy Cannon, Deputy CAO/Deputy Clerk-Planner  

Agenda Action: Motions of Council 

RE: Shore Road Allowance Sale Application, 23 Windmill Point Lane – SRA.2025-001 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council approved the resolution, as outlined in Motions of Council, authorizing staff to proceed with the 

request to purchase the Shore Road Allowance in front of PLAN M345 LOT 22 PCL;21613 NIP, Sabine Ward, 

locally known as 23 Windmill Point Lane adjacent to McKenzie Lake.   

KEY MAP 

       23 Windmill Point Lane 

 

 

 

 

15



 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2025 

Staff Contact: Tracy Cannon, Deputy CAO/Deputy Clerk-Planner  

Agenda Action: Motions of Council 

RE: Shore Road Allowance Sale Applications, 50 Galeairy Lake Road – SRA.2025-002 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council approved the resolution, as outlined in Motions of Council, authorizing staff to proceed with the 

request to purchase the Shore Road Allowance in front of CON 6 PT LOT 6 PT LOT 7 PT;BLOCK A M463 PART 1 

RP;36R6634 PCL 17978 PCL 26461, Airy Ward, locally known as 50 Galeairy Lake Road adjacent to Galeairy 

Lake.   

KEY MAP 

        50 Galeairy Lake Road  

 

 

 

 

 

16



 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2025 

Staff Contact: Tracy Cannon, Deputy CAO/Deputy Clerk-Planner  

Agenda Action: Motions of Council 

RE: Shore Road Allowance Sale Applications, 72 Galeairy Lake Road – SRA.2025-003 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council approved the resolution, as outlined in Motions of Council, authorizing staff to proceed with the 

request to purchase the Shore Road Allowance in front of CON 6 PT LOT 6 PCL 17883 NIP, Airy Ward, locally 

known as 72 Galeairy Lake Road adjacent to Galeairy Lake.   

KEY MAP 

        72 Galeairy Lake Road  

  

 

 

 

17



 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2025 

Staff Contact: Tracy Cannon, Deputy CAO/Deputy Clerk-Planner  

Agenda Action: Motions of Council 

RE: Shore Road Allowance Sale Applications, 79 Galeairy Lake Road – SRA.2025-004 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council approved the resolution, as outlined in Motions of Council, authorizing staff to proceed with the 

request to purchase the Shore Road Allowance in front CON 6 PT LOT 6 PCL 16758 NIP, Airy Ward, locally 

known as 79 Galeairy Lake Road adjacent to Galeairy Lake.   

KEY MAP 

        79 Galeairy Lake Road  

 

 

 

 

 

18



19



20



21



Meeting Date: October 1,2025 

Report Date: September 25, 2025 

Department: Public Works 

Prepared By: Steven Ronholm 

Subject: 2025 Capital Project – Major Lake Road Resurfacing Project Tender Results and 
Options 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Council receive the report titled “2025 Capital Project – Major Lake Road Resurfacing Project 
Tender Results and Options” and approve Option 1: Proceed with resurfacing Sections 1 & 4 only, 
located on Township-owned property, for the 2025 construction season using the existing grant 
funding available. 

 

BACKGROUND 

As part of the approved 2025 Capital Roads Program, the Township tendered the Major Lake Road 
Resurfacing Project on September 3, 2025, with the tender closing on September 17, 2025. 

Only one bid was received from Bonnechere Excavating Incorporated (BEI) in the amount of: 

• $309,356.43 + HST 

• Total: $349,572.77 (incl. HST) 

The scope of the project, as per tender documents, includes resurfacing of Major Lake Road in four 
sections (Sections 1 through 4), some of which traverse lands owned by Ontario Parks. 

 

FUNDING SUMMARY 

Description Amount 

Total 2025 Road Grant Funding $928,388.21 

2025 Capital Projects to Date (Hay Creek + Major Lake) $617,419.90 

Reconstruction Program (Re-gravelling & Culverts) $48,619.12 

22



Description Amount 

Remaining Grant Reserves $262,349.19 

The tendered amount exceeds the available funding by approximately $87,223.58, not accounting 
for HST rebate recovery. 

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 

Option 1 – Proceed with Sections 1 & 4 Only (Recommended) 

Complete only the resurfacing on Township-owned portions of Major Lake Road (Sections 1 & 4). 
This keeps the project within the current grant funding. Sections 2 & 3, which are located on Ontario 
Parks property, would be deferred pending potential funding contributions from Ontario Parks 
and/or the Algonquin Forestry Authority (AFA). 

• BEI has confirmed in writing they will honour submitted unit rates for a reduced scope. 

• Work proceeds in 2025. 

• Encourages funding partnership with other stakeholders for remaining sections. 

Option 2 – Accept Full Tender and Delay Project to 2026 

Defer the project start to Spring 2026 to allow for accumulation of additional grant funds. This 
delays construction but allows full project scope to proceed at once. 

• Risk of cost increases. 

• Delays improvements to Major Lake Road. 

Option 3 – Reject Tender and Re-Tender in 2026 

Cancel this year’s tender and re-issue in Spring 2026. This may increase competitiveness but also 
delays the entire project and risks cost inflation. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

• Option 1 aligns with the available grant reserve of $262,349.19 and allows project 
continuity in 2025. 

• The Township avoids incurring a funding shortfall or needing to draw on reserves or tax levy 
support. 

23



• Future funding opportunities from Ontario Parks and AFA may support completion of 
remaining sections in 2026. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Tender Submission Summary – Bonnechere Excavating Inc. 

2. Tendered Project Drawings – Sections 1–4 

3. Email Confirmation from BEI – Pricing for Reduced Scope 

 

CONCLUSION 

Option 1 provides the most practical and fiscally responsible path forward, enabling the Township 
to complete all resurfacing on municipally-owned lands within the current budget, while 
maintaining positive contractor relations and engaging partner agencies for the remaining project 
scope. 

 

 

24



D.M. Wills Associates Limited
150 Jameson Drive
Peterborough, Ontario
Canada, K9J 0B9

P. 705.742.2297
F. 705.748.9944
E. wills@dmwills.com

or double Surface Treatment

or double Surface Treatment

25



Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care when clicking
links or opening attachments. Do not enter your password into web pages you are not
familiar with.

From: Tom Enright
To: Steven Ronholm
Cc: Donald Andrews
Subject: Township of South Algonquin - Tender RFT2025-04 - Major Lake Road Resurfacing
Date: September 24, 2025 11:47:23 AM
Attachments: image001.jpg

image002.png
image003.jpg
image004.png
image005.jpg

Hi Steven,
 
Thanks for the call today to discuss Major Lake Road. After review, we would be willing to hold
our unit prices as per our tender submission through until 2026. This would be based on
roughly half of the work being completed in October 2025. As I mentioned there would be
some costs associated with the remobilizing to complete the contract in 2026. These cost
would include:

2026 Equipment floating for both the granular fine grade equipment and paving
equipment.
2026 Traffic control zone signage placement and removal.

 
For these items we would request an item or Change Order be created for 2026
Remobilization, for this we would request $6,800 Lump Sum + HST.
 
Please let me know if this is satisfactory or if you require further information.
 
Thanks,

Tom Enright
 

www.bonnechereexcavating.com 
tenright@bonnechereexcavating.com
P.O. Box 705, Renfrew Ontario K7V
4H2
 

      
 
 

 

26



COUNCIL MEETING
October 1, 2025 

ACTION: 

1) Resolution #08-489: Related Resolution to Wind Turbine Motion

27



Moved by:  R. Shalla   Seconded by:  J. Florent   Res. #08-489 

WHEREAS Green Wind Powered Energy Companies have expressed interest in constructing 

wind turbines on the landscape within the Township of South Algonquin and property owners 

and residents within the Township have expressed concern about how wind turbines on the 

landscape would affect them in various ways, also about the effects wind turbines will have on 

nature and how the land base will be opened up for roads, power lines and individual wind 

turbine bases; and  

 

WHEREAS the recent Open House Meeting held on October 11, 2008 in Whitney by RES 

(Renewable Energy Systems) generated commendable interest, the information provided was 

questionable to say the least, such as the so called extensive field survey for winter birds, 

recorded seven (7) species, however in the land base adjacent to primary study which is 

Algonquin Provincial Park, a one day survey during the Christmas Season over the past thirty-

four (34) years has averaged twenty-eight (28) species each day and twenty-eight (28) species of 

birds the past seven (7) years.  Certainly quite a differential considering the land base of the 

Study Area basically abuts the land base of Algonquin Park near the East Gate which is the outer 

perimeter of their study.  It should also be noted that RES survey includes much more open water 

than the winter survey in Algonquin Park consequently it could have more water fowl due to the 

Madawaska River which has open water year round; and  

 

WHEREAS the extensive survey taken in the Primary Study Area by RES Indicated no raptor 

nests were observed and mapping indicates potential for one nesting site.  The Forest 

Management Plans for the Province of Ontario ensures habitat management for raptors based on 

species, Area of Concern Reserve, Prescription Required, Timing Restrictions, etc.  Based on my 

experience in the field, it appears 1+ raptor nests are found on an average of every one hundred 

(100) hectares of land.  Considering this, I certainly have to question RES not locating any raptor 

nests in the Primary Study Area; and   

 

WHEREAS the Open House Meeting by RES did not provide a proposed new network of roads, 

power lines; and  

 

WHEREAS the impact on property values may be decreased dramatically due to the installation 

of Wind Turbines in the Township, and the assessment/revenue generated by Wind Turbines may 

not offset the decrease in assessment or value of properties affected, also the peace and 

tranquility and wilderness residents have become use to, will no longer be there, also the effects 

the Wind Turbines may have on habitat of wildlife, birds, furbearers and the migration of 

birds/deer, also considering the questionable information provided regarding records of winter 

birds and raptors in the primary study area by RES, compared to surveys conducted on adjacent 

land in Algonquin Provincial Park over thirty-four (34) years leave many unanswered questions.   

 

THEREFORE, considering Council was elected by the ratepayers of the Township to work in 

the best interest of the ratepayers, Council not support or approve any Wind Powered Energy 

Projects within the Township and declare a ten (10) year moratorium on Wind Power Energy 

Projects within the Township and if necessary consider involving all ratepayers within the 

Township and have a referendum on the issue at a municipal election, as wind turbines will have 

an effect on the landscape for future generations.” 

-Carried- 

28



COUNCIL MEETING 

October 1, 2025 
 

CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED FOR INFORMATION: 

1) Cassellholme Board of Management, RE: Minutes of July 17, 2025 

2) Feedback Received from a Visitor at J.R. Booth Park 

3) Renfrew County & District Drug Strategy 

4) Nipissing Counts 2025 a Point-in-Time Enumeration 

5) Upper Ottawa Valley OPP- Killaloe Detachment Board Report  

 

 

29



 

1 Cassellholme – Board of Management Meeting Minutes – July 17, 2025 
 

CASSELLHOLME 
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT MEETING  

 
 
 

 

MINUTES 
 
Date:   Thursday, July 17, 2025 
 
Location:  Cassellholme Garden Room 
 
Board Members: Dave Mendicino, Chair  Staff: Angie Punnett, Administrator 

Michelle Lahaye – Vice Chair  Billy Brooks, Chief Financial Officer 
 Peter Chirico    Anita Brisson, Project Manager 

   James (Jim) Bruce   Camille Bigras, QI Director  
   Chris Mayne    Julie Pilkey, Secretary 

     Tiffany Chapman, Secretary 
 
Regrets:  Robert Corriveau  Guests: Monique Peters, Family Council 
   Mark King    Nathan Jensen  
        

       

 ITEM ACTION 

A. CALL TO ORDER  

  

MEETING RECORDED 
 
 “Moved by Michelle Lahaye and seconded by Chris Mayne that the meeting be called to order at 5:02 
p.m.” 
 
Res. #087-25                                                                                                                               Carried 
 
 

 

 1. Approval of Agenda  

  
 
“Moved by Peter Chirico and seconded by Jim Bruce that the Board approved the Agenda for this 
meeting, as presented.” 
 
Res. #088-25                                                                                                                              Carried 
 
 
 

 

 2. Conflict of Interest  

  
 “Moved by Michelle Lahaye and seconded by Jim Bruce that no Board Members present have declared 
a conflict of interest. 
 
Res. #089-25                                                                                                                              Carried 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

30



2 Cassellholme Board of Management Meeting Minutes – July 17, 2025 
 

 3. Approval of Minutes 
 
 

  

3.1 Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held on June 26, 2025, 2025 
 
“Moved by Jim Bruce and seconded by Peter Chirico that the minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, 
held on June 26, be adopted as presented.” 
 
Res. #090-25                                                                                                                              Carried 
 
 

 

 4. New Business  

  
 
 

 

 5. Redevelopment  

  
 

5.1 Construction Update (Anita Brisson) 
Report in package. 
Percon unable to meet deadline. 
Delay to move in date of September 8-16, 2025 
Potential delay unable to get occupancy approval – a lot of moving pieces 
Next potential dates of November 25 or 30, 2025. Difficulties securing dates – cost for 
alternate dates. 
New fire hydrant installed – water shut off 9am-5pm Monday, July 14, 2025 
 

5.2 Redevelopment – Move Plan, Staffing Plan, etc. 
All families contacted – emails sent out to all 
Internal move plan still in the works 
A lot of questions – communication to be sent out 
Staffing plan – lines created – working with Union on how line selection process 
Staff training delayed 
 

5.3 Behavioural Support Unit 
Ministry still hasn’t come back with a decision to move forward. Update within next month. 
Sounds promising as per email sent from OH regarding expansion of 12-24 bed for BSU. 
BSU separate waitlist criteria – North Bay does not currently have BSU waitlist. 
 
 

 

 6. Operations  

  
6.1 Operations Update  

Update in package.  
Currently in Respiratory Outbreak on 3rd floor 
Pharmacy Contract up for renewal 
Layoff notice to RPN Team Leads at time of move – waiting on line selection process 
WSIB Claims null 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

31



3 Cassellholme Board of Management Meeting Minutes – July 17, 2025 
 

 7. IN - CAMERA  

  
Guests left the Meeting 
 
“Moved by Peter Chirico and seconded by Jim Bruce that the Board proceed to an In-Camera session at 
5:38 p.m.” 
 
Res. #091-25                                                                                                                              Carried 
 
 

7.1 Approval of the In-Camera Minutes – dated June 26, 2025 
In-Camera Motion - Res. #092-25 

 
7.2 Confidential Matter – Redevelopment 
7.3 Confidential Matter – Financial  
7.4 Confidential Matter – Governance 

 
 
 
“Moved by Peter Chirico and seconded by Jim Bruce that the Board approve the In-Camera session to 
be adjourned at 6:35 p.m.” 
 
Res. #093-25                                                                                                                             Carried 
 
 

 

B. CORRESPONDENCE  

  
 

 

C. REQUEST FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  

   
No items noted 

 
 

 

D. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

  

Thursday August 28, 2025 – Cassellholme Garden Room – 5:00 p.m. 
 

 

E. ADJOURNMENT  

  
“Moved by Jim Bruce and seconded by Michelle Lahaye that the meeting be adjourned at   
6:40 p.m.” 
 
Res.  #094-25                                                                                                                              Carried 
                                                                                                              

 

 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________  _______________________________________________ 
Secretary      Chairman 

32



 

 

 

July 14 2025 

Subject: Cassellholme Redevelopment Update – July 14 2025 

 

Construction Activity - Percon 

Highlights: 

Phase 00 - Work complete. 

Phase 1-A – Work complete 

Phase 1-B sequencing remains unchanged from the previous report. 

 

Refer to schedule notes of previousl reports for comments on Draft Finishing Schedule and  

comments on Rev. 4 Schedule.  

The owner’s move in date has been confirmed for September 8 to September 16, 2025.  

Schedule risks outlined in the March 2025 report have materialized resulting in the revised  

September 2025 move-in date. 

Updated milestones have been coordinated with Cassellholme and are as follows: 

 

Documentation submission to the Ministry of Long-Term Care (MOLTC): July 15/16, 2025 

Anticipated Pre-Occupancy review by MOLTC: July 29, 2025 

Cassellholme Move-in: Start – September 8, 2025, Finish September 16, 2025. 

 

Current occupancy risks: 

• CO 171 - Temporary fire department connection - complete 

• PC 159 - Relocate Phase 3 fire hydrant to Phase 1 – complete 

• PC 160 - Temporary Exist Signage - work is in progress 

• PC 161 - Flow switch & supervised valve, ATS wiring valve - work is in progress 

• PC 162 - Stairwell Signage Revision - work is in progress 

• Exist stair levels - work is in progress 

 

PHASE 1-B 

• Mechanical and electrical finishes are ongoing.  

• Link from old to new construction – to be completed July 18 

• Final Millwork installation finishing Level 1 

• Finish paint coat and touchups ongoing throughout the building 

• Full ceiling tile installation in progress on remaining portion of L1 

• Flooring installation complete, final baseboard being installed 

• Final washroom accessories being installed. 

• BAS programming, Equipment start-ups and balancing is ongoing. 

33



 

 

• Planting in progress for week of July 14. 

 

Significant work in millwork installations, and drywall finishing, painting for the last weeks, 

furniture and appliances in place, kitchens and nursing stations in their last weeks of 

completion. 

 

This month Percon and MJA to continue to review 2/3/4th by end of month for. Main push is 

on the ground floor and 5th for final completion and to be reviewed. Furniture room 

placement targeted for July 16. All TVs, small appliances, supplies to be in by mid July. Many 

vendors on site installing to make areas ready. Balcony furniture begin to be placed this 

month. 
 

Transition Planning Highlights 

An updated summary is attached for reference.  

Change Order Log - Please see the attached  

Budget Update – To be provided separately, W. Brooks 

34



Summary - 2025-07-14

Action Sub Actions Due Date

Total Completion Checklist - Ministry 

Submissions

Notice of Total Completion checklists submitted June 29; Total Completion documents to be submitted July 16; 

Actual Total Completion (signed checklists and signed attestation of Note of Actual Total

Completion for each checklist):

A. Pre-Occupancy Design Manual Checklist

B. Operational Readiness

i. Environmental Checklist

ii. Dietary Checklist

iii. Nursing Checklist

•	Occupancy Permit or equivalent notification from the Local Building Department

•	Ontario Fire Marshal or local fire department approved (i.e. stamped or signed) fire plan

•	Electrical Safety Authority certificate

•	Fire alarm verification certificate

•	Resident-staff communication and response system verification certificate

•	HVAC Balancing Report/Verification 

•	TSSA Certificate for any elevators 

•	A satisfactory inspection report from a Public Health Inspector indicating that the kitchen

•	and/or serveries

•	A completed Cold Chain Maintenance Inspection Report from a Public Health Inspector

•	or Public Health Nurse identifying compliance with vaccine storage and handling requirements

•	A verification letter or certificate that the generator has been tested

•	verification letter by a lighting specialist or lighting engineer confirming the lighting

•	level in all areas of the LTC home are in compliance

•	A verification letter by the project’s mechanical engineer confirming the cooling system

•	provided for the LTC home is in compliance

Ministry target inspection July 29-Aug 5 2025-07-16

Art Fundraising ongoing

Wood at mill for purpose ongoing

Outdoor Space gazebos for ground level installed; balcony furniture partially purchased for review July

P1 Move

HCR - Movers

Biweekly meetings in progress; mockup date of Aug 13; Move will commence on Sept 8th-16th, Patient move on the 

14th; Action register created and begin purging where ever possible so it is not all left to the end
2025-08-13

Resident Communication

Monthly communications provided

next communication for room placement to began and rooms will be identified by August ongoing

Furniture delivery continue to place furniture where possible; Medline on site for more placement July 16 2025-07-16
IT

ID Access Card
To breakdown internal processes for profiles, roles, access; program the system and print the cards for implementation; 

to begin the printing process in July as staffing is determined priority

Phone & TV System Finalized and TV packages confirmed; Purchased of TVs in June and mounting in July

Digital Menus/Boards S/W - Mealsuite being implemented by CH management and TVs, and mounts purchased; to be placed end of July

Bed Allocation - Indigenous and Speciality

Bed Application - Licencing Continue to have discussions with OH and Ministry on next steps ongoing

Support Services

Building Ready

kitchens, med rooms, soap, clinical office furniture, pandemic supplies, balcony furniture, medications, linens, food, 

laundry flow, elevator usage and timing, housekeeping and cleaning July

Appliances ordered and placement by mid July 2025-07-16
Storage Areas and supplies shelving and ordering system ordered; all in place by end of July 23-Jul

Inventory Management Solution and 

Process ordered 3rd party solution and to be implemented July July

Emergency Response

Fire plan completed July 14; Medsled placement July; training ongoing July 

P2 Parking Need to begin discussions and planning for start of P2 parking (winter 2026); options to be discussed with SLT Winter 2026
Staff Training Plan

Detailed Breakdown

Training to commence 3rd week of July with online videos and on floor training; simulated on unit training to 

commence in June to provide expectations of flow and effectiveness July/August

ideas have been noted and small WG; including Creative Industries - WG to assemble once individuals are available

ongoing

35



RFE RFE PC CD SI RFI CO Work Description Reason Status Date Issued Quote Sent Approval Date Quoted Approved

Contract Time

(days) 
1 1 1 1 Millwork revisions/clarifications Coordination Approved 18-Feb-22 17-Mar-22 28-Mar-22 $34,553.53 $34,553.53 

2 2 1 2 Emergency Switchboard revisions Coordination Approved 17-Feb-22 17-Mar-22 28-Mar-22 $4,919.20 $4,919.20 

3 3 3 Inrease Builders Risk Insurance to Include Soft Costs Lender Requirement Approved 30-Mar-22 30-Mar-22 05-Apr-22 $29,846.88 $29,846.88 

4 4 3 Cost associated to add Wrap Up Insurance Policy Lender Requirement Approved 30-Mar-22 30-Mar-22 05-Apr-22 $282,579.86 $282,579.86 

5 5R1 2 5 Door revisions Coordination Approved 15-Mar-22 07-Apr-22 06-May-22 $4,677.20 $4,677.20 

6 6 3 4 Washroom Accessories Revisions Coordination Approved 28-Mar-22 22-Apr-22 25-Apr-22 $863.50 $863.50 

7 7 9 Removal exisiting foundations (Unit rate only - see RFE 16) Cancelled 21-Apr-22 25-Apr-22

8 8 16 6 Provide new water valve at property line AHJ Approved 05-May-22 06-May-22 06-May-22 $8,607.50 $8,607.50 

9 9 4 41 North wing door revisions Coordination Approved 28-Mar-22 16-Jan-23 19-Jan-23 $3,756.50 $3,756.50

10 10 5 7 Elevator pit lightling revisions AHJ Approved 29-Mar-22 09-May-22 16-May-22 ($1,361.00) ($1,361.00)

11 11 6 8 Transformer modifications Cost Saving Approved 07-Apr-22 09-May-22 27-May-22 ($6,000.00) ($6,000.00)

12 12 R1 9 Millwork edging revisions & Drawer modifications (per email April 25, 2022) Cost Saving Approved N/A 19-May-22 01-Jun-22 ($11,906.00) ($11,906.00)

13 13 CANCELLED: Drawer modifications (SEE RFE 12R1) Cancelled N/A 09-May-22

14 14 17 12 Temporary Hydrant at North Wing AHJ Approved 12-Apr-22 16-May-22 01-Jun-22 $5,585.25 $5,585.25 

15 15R2 7R1 36 Phase 1 temporary door revisions and hardware coordination Coordination Approved 02-Dec-22 06-Dec-22 10-Jan-22 $4,539.70 $4,539.70

16 16R2 9 15 Removal of exisiitng foundations Site Condition Approved 21-Apr-22 20-May-22 27-Jun-22 $70,326.38 $70,326.38

17 17 11 11 Hardware revisions to Door V101 Coordination Approved 27-Apr-22 19-May-22 01-Jun-22 $6,046.70 $6,046.70 

18 18R2 18 14 Revise pipe material storm main tee at Olive St. Site Condition Approved 13-May-22 20-May-22 29-Jun-22 $7,885.44 $7,885.44

19 19 12 10 Temporary lighting in courtyard parking Health & Safety Approved 27-Apr-22 25-May-22 01-Jun-22 $15,888.40 $15,888.40 

20 20R1 8 13 Add card reader control for rear doors on elevators 1024 & 1025 Design Improvement Approved 25-Apr-22 30-May-22 10-Jun-22 $1,512.50 $1,512.50 

21 21R1 16 Temporary Door Hardware supplied by Owner's Security Provider Schedule Change Approved 22-Jun-22 08-Jul-22 22-Jul-22 ($6,650.00) ($6,650.00)

22 22 23 Investigate/repair storm line blockage near property line at Olive St. Site Condition Cancelled 23-Jun-22 06-Jul-22

23 23R2 19R1 17 R Corrections and revisions to parking lot line in temporary and east parking areas Owner Requested Approved 16-Aug-22 15-Sep-22 22-Sep-22 $3,454.00 $3,454.00

24 24R4 22R1 27 Provide temporary power feed to east parking lot lighting Coordination Approved 19-Aug-22 24-Oct-22 27-Oct-22 ($8,416.88) ($8,416.88)

25 25R1 25R1 18 Revision to waterline connections to exisiting building - Revised Site Condition Approved 03-Aug-22 05-Aug-22 11-Aug-22 $42,426.23 $42,426.23

26 26 20 19 Revision to electrical panel E-1-C Coordination Approved 02-Jun-22 09-Aug-22 11-Aug-22 $6,702.30 $6,702.30

27 27R1 19R1 23 Revise acoustic ceiling tile materials Cost Saving Approved 15-Sep-22 28-Sep-22 05-Oct-22 ($66,054.48) ($66,054.48)

28 28 23 20 Pile Rock Points Contractor Requested Approved 03-Aug-22 12-Aug-22 12-Aug-22 $98,826.40 $98,826.40

29 29R3 28 33 Revision to Phase 1 & 2 sanitary and storm connections at grade beams Coordination Approved 03-Aug-22 09-Nov-22 22-Nov-22 $21,724.63 $21,724.63

30 30 26 21 Revision to under-slab plumbing and inverts Coordination Approved 26-Jul-22 18-Aug-22 22-Sep-22 $15,196.50 $15,196.50

31 31 10 40 Revision to the fire and combination fire/smoke dampers AHJ Approved 26-Apr-22 15-Sep-22 26-Jan-23 $134,858.85 $134,858.85

32 32R1 14 Door frame material revisions along corridor 1165 Design Improvement Not Accepted 31-Aug-22 31-Aug-22

33 33 24 Revised wood frame design for Jams Cost Saving Approved 09-Sep-22 28-Sep-22 05-Oct-22 ($12,750.00) ($12,750.00)

34 34R4 21R3 29 Provide new grounding loop for new building service AHJ Approved 22-Aug-22 28-Oct-22 08-Nov-22 $77,892.15 $77,892.15

35 35R3 27R2 35 Delete deck mounted soap dispensers Owner Requested Approved 21-Nov-22 05-Dec-22 10-Jan-22 ($4,081.00) ($4,081.00)

36 36R4 15R 117 Door hardware revisions to door 1147a Coordination Pending 12-Oct-22 18-Apr-24 29-Apr-24 $10,606.20 $10,606.20

37 37 13R 31 Janitor room door revisions Coordination Approved 19-Sep-22 19-Sep-22 10-Nov-22 $4,785.00 $4,785.00

38 38 29 22 Exisiting Service Plug Requirement AHJ Approved 31-Aug-22 23-Sep-22 10-Oct-22 $2,414.10 $2,414.10

41 41 24R1 32 Provide grilles on type 'O' fin radiation in trench in Auditorium 1005 Coordination Approved 22-Sep-22 17-Oct-22 15-Nov-22 $23,009.80 $23,009.80

30 After hours paving of East Parking Lot Owner Requested Cancelled 16-Sep-22

39 39 31 Additional curb at edge of exisiting parking area Owner Requested Cancelled 16-Sep-22 28-Sep-22

40 40R1 32R1 25 Revision to exisiting sanitary line Site Condition Approved 21-Sep-22 29-Sep-22 06-Oct-22 $61,577.36 $61,577.36 TBD

47 47R1 33 43 Structural revisions to Phase 1 framing, Phase 2 framing, pile caps and piles  Coordination Approved 23-Sep-22 11-Jan-23 22-Jan-23 $37,038.71 $37,038.71 4

42 42R1 34 26 Water storage tank layout and structural revisions Coordination Approved 26-Sep-22 14-Oct-22 27-Oct-22 $3,597.83 $3,597.83

43 43 35R 61 Revision to North Wing elevator brackets for rail attachments Coordination Approved 07-Oct-22 20-Jun-23 27-Jun-23 $11,964.96 $11,964.96 

53 53 36R2 44 Revision to brace frame VB105 Coordination Approved 09-Nov-22 13-Dec-22 26-Jan-23 $9,497.44 $9,497.44

45 45 37 30 Revision to light fixtures P5 and P6 Coordination Approved 11-Oct-22 31-Oct-22 08-Nov-22 $2,369.33 $2,369.33

48 48 38 37 Structural beam revisions at Block B roof terraces balconies Coordination Approved 20-Oct-22 13-Dec-22 10-Jan-23 $969.52 $969.52

49 49R2 36R1 60 Structural clarifications - structural steel and rebar shop drawings Coordination Approved 20-Jan-23 10-Mar-23 28-Jun-23 $2,768.37 $2,768.37

46 7R1 28 Provide slab Mounting brackets for smoke shelter Site Condition Approved 17-Oct-22 25-Oct-22 01-Nov-22 $1,050.68 $1,050.68

51 51R1 39 38 Add smoke detectors in corridors of RHA areas Coordination Approved 08-Nov-22 13-Dec-22 10-Jan-23 $5,258.00 $5,258.00

44R1 22 34 Provide additional steel modifications outlined in SI#22 Coordination Approved 27-Jul-22 16-Nov-22 22-Nov-22 $3,300.11 $3,300.11

40 Additional elevator controls Coordination Pending 07-Dec-22

56 56 41 45 Revision to sliding door frame details Coordination Approved 21-Dec-22 08-Feb-23 28-Feb-23 $8,783.50 $8,783.50

54 54 42 46 Provide fixed mirrors in Staff washrooms Coordination Approved 10-Jan-23 03-Feb-23 28-Feb-23 $7,507.50 $7,507.50

54R1 54R1 42 48 Correct the cost of fixed mirrors from CO#46 Coordination Approved 10-Jan-23 03-Mar-23 21-Mar-23 ($2,035.00) -$2,035.00

52 52 39 39 Provide relay bases on smoke detectors related to door hold opens for SI#39 AHJ Approved 08-Nov-22 13-Dec-22 10-Jan-23 $3,014.00 $3,014.00

55 55 43 Revise range hood colour Owner Requested Cancelled 18-Jan-23

57 57 44 47 Revision to L#2 & L#2-1 lavatory fixtures Coordination Approved 18-Jan-23 17-Jan-23 21-Feb-23 $5,193.10 $5,193.10

54 54R1 41 42 Remedial modifications to pile caps and grade beams - Phase 1 Site Condition Approved 28-Nov-22 10-Jan-23 20-Jan-23 $14,145.87 $14,145.87 4

58 58 45 Revisions to operable window vent type Coordination Cancelled 06-Feb-23

60 60 46 52 Modifications to generator ESB breakers Coordination Approved 07-Feb-23 24-Mar-23 03-May-23 $19,405.10 $19,405.10

95 95 47 79 Revise office door locaitons, electrical from PC47 Owner Requested Approved 23-Mar-23 08-Sep-23 09-Sep-25 $10,312.50 $10,312.50

72 72R3 47 73 Revise office door locations, typical millwork from PC47 Owner Requested Approved 15-Aug-23 15-Aug-23 07-May-24 $11,985.60 $11,985.60

59 59 48R 49 Revisions to electrical to accommodate Kitchen Equipment Phase 1 Coordination Approved 14-Feb-23 17-Mar-23 22-Mar-23 $501.60 $501.60

62 62R2 49 54 Typical Bedroom Mockup Owner Requested Approved 09-Mar-23 03-May-23 06-Jun-23 $75,577.95 $75,577.95 

50 Revise rated floor assembly ULC Listed Design No. Cost Saving Cancelled 22-Mar-23

51 50 Revision to select light fixtures to alternate product Design Improvement Approved 22-Mar-23 20-Apr-23 26-Apr-23 $0.00 $0.00

65 65 52 57 Delete select cubical curtains and provide track breaks in patient lift tracks Coordination Approved 29-Mar-23 12-May-23 01-Jun-23 ($5,382.50) ($5,382.50)

75 75R1 53 69 Electrical revisions for elevator connections Coordination Approved 30-Mar-23 29-Jun-23 03-Aug-23 $18,212.70 $18,212.70

Change Order Log - July 14 2025
Percon 

36



54 Revisions to interior expansion joints types Coordination Cancelled 30-Mar-23

68 68 55 56 Exisiting Water Room pull station Coordination Approved 05-Apr-23 17-May-23 23-May-23 $1,142.90 $1,142.90 

67 67 56 55 Revision to brace frame VB205 Coordination Approved 17-Apr-23 12-May-23 18-May-23 $1,164.02 $1,164.02 

82 82R2 57R 78 Revision to biometric readers Owner Requested Approved 18-Apr-23 01-Sep-23 25-Sep-23 -$21,023.00 -$21,023.00

64 64 49 51 Tree Removal at End of Block B Site Condition Approved 03-Nov-22 20-Apr-23 26-Apr-23 $2,117.50 $2,117.50

66 66R1 58 68 Clarification to area drains Coordination Approved 20-Apr-23 19-Jul-23 27-Jul-23 $25,942.40 $25,942.40

77 77R1 59 85 Fiber optic connection to exisiting building Coordination Approved 02-May-23 25-Jul-23 12-Oct-23 $10,118.90 $10,118.90

78 78 60 63 Additional pot light in Bedroom Type "D" Coordination Approved 02-May-23 26-Jun-23 04-Jul-23 $2,865.50 $2,865.50

61 Revision to clarify clay unit product Discontinued Product Pending 09-May-23

71 71 62R 59R Modifications to elevator framing for door supports and additional pit ladder Coordination Approved 23-May-23 05-Jun-23 27-Jun-23 $66,131.08 $66,131.08 2

63 Patching of exisiting asphalt drive-ways Owner Requested Cancelled 23-May-23

81 81 64 65 Flooring revisions Coordination Approved 25-May-23 07-Jul-23 20-Jul-23 $7,090.72 $7,090.72

80 80R2 65 84 Owner requested revisions to Kitchen Equipment Owner Requested Approved 25-May-23 22-Sep-23 03-Oct-23 $68,113.10 $68,113.10

73 73 66 62 Delete kitchen equipment soap and towel dispenser accessories Owner Requested Approved 29-May-23 20-Jun-23 27-Jun-23 ($2,670.00) ($2,670.00)

126 126R2 67R3 115 Tie-in to exisiting fire alarm and PA systems Coordination Approved 30-May-23 21-Mar-24 12-Apr-24 $18,950.80 $18,950.80

87 87 68 70 Revision to louvres Coordination Approved 30-May-23 02-Aug-23 08-Aug-23 $660.00 $660.00

68 68 69 58 Patient lift system power supply covers Owner Requested Approved 01-Jun-23 05-Jun-23 22-Jun-23 $10,222.30 $10,222.30 

83 83 70 67 Revision to stair guard assembly Coordination Approved 06-Jun-23 19-Jul-23 26-Jul-23 $726.00 $726.00

84 84 71 66 Revision to Ceramic tile type CT2.1 in select rooms Owner Requested Approved 15-Jun-23 19-Jul-23 25-Jul-23 $0.00 $0.00

74 74R1 72R 64 Temporary support angles for Block C strutural frame Coordination Approved 13-Jun-23 28-Jun-23 04-Jul-23 $10,563.30 $10,563.30 

69 69R1 71 Removal of exisiitng foundations at electrical duct bank trench Site Condition Approved 14-Jun-23 07-Jul-23 09-Aug-23 $10,095.80 $10,095.80 

76 76R3 61 72 Revision to clay unit masonry product Coordination Approved 09-May-24 26-Jun-24 12-Aug-24 $55,860.00 $55,860.00 

73 Revise solid surface finish colour on millwork M30 & M31 Owner Requested Cancelled 12-Jul-23

74 Additional structural support at 5th floor trench drain Coordination Pending 12-Jul-23

90 90 75R 74 Revised detail at expansion joint at gridline 23 between S & T/T.2. Coordination Approved 12-Jul-23 14-Aug-23 24-Aug-23 $8,513.40 $8,513.40 

92 92 75 Revised rebar stirrups at elevator conduit duct bank Coordination Approved 18-Jul-23 23-Aug-23 30-Aug-23 $1,036.20 $1,036.20 

93 93 148 76 Revision to window sill support material detail Contractor Requested Approved 23-Aug-23 29-Aug-23 05-Sep-23 $3,312.89 $3,312.89 

102 76 86 Coring of Foundation for temporary generator connection Coordination Approved 25-Jul-23 03-Oct-23 11-Oct-23 $3,850.00 $3,850.00 

101 101R3 76R2 91 Connection for Portable Genset and Load Bank Testing Owner Requested Approved 06-Feb-24 22-Feb-24 12-Mar-24 $116,723.25 $116,723.25 

94 94 77 77 Revision to jockey pump electrical feed Coordination Approved 26-Jul-23 01-Sep-23 12-Sep-23 $5,904.80 $5,904.80

98 98 78 82 Revised wall depth in Laundry Rooms to accommodate 4" drain pipe Coordination Approved 27-Jul-23 19-Sep-23 03-Oct-23 $246.50 $246.50

108 108 79 111 Delete fire damper at return air duct in penthouse level Coordination Approved 31-Jul-23 24-Oct-23 21-Mar-24 ($497.00) ($497.00)

97 97R1 80R 81 Revise wall thickness to accommodate pipe size Coordination Approved 03-Aug-23 19-Sep-23 03-Oct-23 $3,090.10 $3,090.10

96 96 81 83 Domestic booster pump power feed Coordination Approved 23-Aug-23 13-Sep-23 02-Oct-23 $6,792.50 $6,792.50

82 156 Revision to Drew St. entrance samitary & storm pipes for interferences Coordination Approved 28-Aug-23 11-Feb-25 25-Feb-25 $54,487.51 $54,487.51 

105 105 83 88 Electric heaters for temproary heat in rooms at junction between Phase 1 and 2 Coordination Approved 15-Sep-23 10-Sep-23 24-Oct-23 $5,335.90 $5,355.90 

84 Investigation for tie-in to exisiting PA system Coordination Cancelled 15-Sep-23

85 85 67 80 Ductwork revisions related to SI#67 Coordination Approved 06-Jun-23 02-Aug-23 25-Sep-23 $1,439.90 $1,439.90 

103 103R1 85 89 Additional louvre colour Coordination Approved 02-Oct-23 30-Oct-23 10-Nov-23 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 

106 106 86 87 Chiller Support Frames Coordination Approved 02-Oct-23 17-Oct-23 18-Oct-23 $42,145.73 $42,145.73 

112 112R1 87 96 Revise light fixture type U & U1 Coordination Approved 17-Oct-23 29-Nov-23 07-Jan-24 $2,753.30 $2,753.30 

114 114 88 94 Revise storm drain piping from the roof of Stair Shaft #5 Coordination Approved 26-Oct-23 14-Nov-23 05-Dec-23 $8,269.80 $8,269.80 

120 120R4 89 114 Add digital meni board connections at each dining area Owner Requested Approved 31-Oct-23 01-Apr-24 12-Apr-24 $15,745.40 $15,745.40 

116 116 90 100 Additional roof anchors at chimney for Boiler #4 Coordination Approved 01-Nov-23 20-Nov-23 10-Jan-24 $35,019.60 $35,019.60 

91 97 Revision to flooring materials in corridors and resdient vestibules Owner Requested Approved 08-Nov-23 22-Nov-23 07-Jan-23 $0.00 $0.00 

92 Provide a permanent load bank for generator testing Coordination Pending 08-Nov-23

132 132R2 93 127 Revision for door controls Coordination Approved 10-Nov-23 08-May-24 23-May-24 $55,073.65 $55,073.65 

117 117 94 93 Ground connection from pole to transformer Coordination Approved 14-Nov-23 24-Nov-23 27-Nov-23 $3,122.90 $3,122.90 

104 104R2 90 Additional track components for lift track in room 5091 - Submittal 135 Coordination Approved 30-May-23 31-Oct-23 10-Nov-23 $2,448.60 $2,448.60 

111 111R1 91R2 92 Revision to ductwork related to ERV#1 and SI#91R2 Coordination Approved 15-Sep-23 16-Nov-23 20-Nov-23 $4,701.40 $4,701.40 

95R Typical resident wardrobe storage hinges Owner Requested Cancelled 20-Nov-23

121 121R2 96R 102 Typical resident room and washroom millwork revisions Owner Requested Approved 22-Nov-23 09-Jan-24 15-Jan-24 $28,778.20 $28,778.20 

123 123R2 97R 101 Revision to resident room drapes Owner Requested Approved 22-Nov-23 08-Jan-24 10-Jan-24 $4,059.00 $4,059.00 

98 Additional lightning protection Coordination Cancelled 27-Nov-23

125 125R2 99R 103 Toggle switch at flusher disinfector in soiled utility rooms Coordination Approved 29-Nov-23 11-Jan-24 15-Jan-24 $1,651.10 $1,651.10 

135 135R1 100 105 Revise drainage for balcony/roof areas Coordination Approved 29-Nov-23 15-Feb-24 27-Feb-24 $19,183.78 $19,183.78 

110 110R1 80 95 Costs associated with piping clarification in SI#80 Coordination Approved 15-Aug-23 30-Nov-23 14-Dec-23 $22,236.50 $22,236.50 

101 Delete telephone cables between communications cabinets Owner Requested Cancelled 19-Dec-23

53 Phase 2 Piling Site Condition Approved 08-Jan-24 08-Jan-24 10-Jan-24 $0.00 $0.00 

129 129R1 102 104 Revision to Clean Utility Millwork M13 Owner Requested Approved 22-Dec-23 24-Jan-24 30-Jan-24 ($29,960.00) ($29,960.00)

134 134R2 103 112 Delete resident room lower entertainment boxes Owner Requested Approved 02-Jan-24 15-Mar-24 03-Apr-24 ($112,848.00) ($112,848.00)

133 133 104 106 Revisions to Phase 2 Structrual Steel Coordination Approved 04-Jan-24 02-Feb-24 27-Feb-24 $13,369.24 $13,369.24 

136 136 105 118 Wanderguard elevator control tie-in Coordination Pending 08-Jan-24 17-Apr-24 29-Apr-24 $32,157.40 $32,157.40 

98 Asphalt deficiency warranty extension Deficiency Reconciliation Approved 06-Dec-23 14-Dec-23 11-Jan-24 ($7,500.00) ($7,500.00)

127 127 99 CSA IPAC training course Contractor Requested Approved 10-Nov-23 02-Jan-24 11-Jan-24 ($550.00) ($550.00)

139 139R 106 109 Revision to Block D tub rooms Coordination Approved 24-Jan-24 26-Feb-24 07-Mar-24 $7,681.30 $7,681.30 

148 148R1 107 122 Support posts for med sled system in stairwells Owner Requested Approved 31-Jan-24 01-May-24 07-May-24 $53,607.07 $53,607.07 

141 141 108 108 Revise outlet locations in Type C Bedrooms Owner Requested Approved 08-Feb-24 23-Feb-24 07-Mar-24 $1,907.40 $1,907.40 

140 140 107 Delete siding band detail at Penthouse Cost Saving Approved 21-Feb-24 21-Feb-24 27-Feb-24 ($10,600.00) ($10,600.00)

137 137 110 Slab edge firestop detail revision Coordination Approved 09-Feb-24 04-Mar-24 07-Mar-24 $39,165.00 $39,165.00 

145 145 113 Extent of slad edge at curtain wall block C - Phase 1 Coordination Approved 22-Mar-24 22-Mar-24 04-Apr-24 $3,637.92 $3,637.92 

109R Clarification to temporary soffit and heating details Cancelled Pending 07-Mar-24

146 146 110 116 Add door 5136 and associated hardware Coordination Approved 04-Mar-24 05-Apr-24 26-Apr-24 $11,698.50 $11,698.50 

147 147R1 111R 135 Revisions to communication cabinets racks and distribution Coordination Approved 14-Mar-24 02-Jul-24 29-Jul-24 $22,195.00 $22,195.80 

37



150 150 112 123 Radiant heater piping enclosures Coordination Approved 14-Mar-24 22-Apr-24 22-May-24 $9,624.86 $9,624.86 

151 151 113 119 Revisions to Resident Washrooms to Accommodate Plumbing Drain Coordination Approved 22-Apr-24 22-Apr-24 29-Apr-24 $5,564.06 $5,564.06 

152 152R1 114 126 Revisions to water room door hardware Coordination Approved 20-Mar-24 07-May-24 23-May-24 $8,929.80 $8,929.80 

156 156 116R 121 Revision to handrails and base bumpers Coordination Approved 02-May-24 01-May-24 07-May-24 $14,213.38 $14,213.38 

153 153 129 Revision to cabinet locks Owner Requested Approved 24-Apr-24 24-Apr-24 24-May-24 $1,540.57 $1,540.57 

154 154 193 Delete Sprinkler Control Valve Cost Saving Approved 01-May-24 24-Apr-24 07-May-24 ($500.00) ($500.00)

158 158 117 124 Add temporary heat trace system to pipes at underside of servery 2078 & 2086 Coordination Approved 08-Apr-24 08-May-24 15-May-24 $21,541.30 $21,541.30 

157 157 118 128 Phase 1 - Roof level sun control outrigger support Coordination Approved 11-Apr-24 06-May-24 24-May-24 $29,342.14 $29,342.14 

160 160 119R 132 Kill switch for Ground Floor Servery 1067 Coordination Approved 13-May-24 30-May-24 06-Jun-24 $2,971.10 $2,971.10 

159 159 125 Revise millwork pulls Cost Saving Approved 10-May-24 10-May-24 23-May-24 ($4,132.80) ($4,132.80)

163 163 120 133 Additional exit signs at double egress doors Coordination Approved 29-May-24 11-Jun-24 23-Jul-24 $22,341.00 $22,341.00 

162 162 121R 134 Add end enclosures to sneeze guards AHJ Approved 03-Jun-24 12-Jun-24 23-Jul-24 $10,373.00 $10,373.00 

122 Brick support at level 2 balcony/roof Coordination Pending

130 Delay Claim Settlement Delay Claim Approved 04-Jun-24 04-Jun-24 06-Jun-24 $317,200.00 $317,200.00 

148 149 131 Additional cubicle curtains Phase 2 Coordination Approved 17-Apr-24 17-Apr-24 29-May-24 $10,670.00 $10,670.00 

123 Replace damaged trees by winter salt at highway Site Condition Cancelled 08-Jul-24 19-Jul-24 $34,672.55 

168 168R 124 138 Circuiting and clarifications for pumps P6, P7, P20 & P21 Coordination Approved 18-Jul-24 09-Aug-24 29-Aug-24 $1,821.00 $1,821.60 

167 167 136 Revision to hardware on doors 1018a, 1030b, 1165 Coordination Approved 22-Jul-24 22-Jul-24 29-Jul-24 $1,056.00 $1,056.00 

169 169R 125 137 Revision to soffit detail at 1064 & 1075 Coordination Approved 22-Jul-24 07-Aug-24 14-Aug-24 $5,908.76 $5,908.76 

126 Add hot water recirculation line to washers Design Improvement Cancelled 22-Jul-24 11-Sep-24 $0.00 

127 140 Generator shore power circuit Coordination Approved 07-Aug-24 03-Sep-24 19-Sep-24 $6,043.40 $6,043.40 

128 141 Revision to 5th floor Dining Windows & exhaust duct Coordination Approved 13-Aug-24 09-Sep-24 19-Sep-24 $20,700.61 $20,700.61 

129 142 Rework roof drain above 5th floor balcony Coordination Approved 19-Aug-24 11-Sep-24 19-Sep-24 $4,275.35 $4,275.35 

175 175R 130R 143 Revised - Insulation tie-in at temporary wall to curtainwall Coordination Approved 19-Sep-24 24-Sep-24 03-Oct-24 $5,417.50 $5,417.50 

171 171 135 139 Credit for revisions to PRV valves from SI#135 Cost Saving Approved 18-Jul-24 15-Aug-24 29-Aug-24 ($4,964.00) ($4,964.00)

131 Revised - Gas detection in generator room #6011 Regulartory Change Pending 06-Nov-24

132 144 Water room drywall revision Coordination Approved 19-Sep-24 29-Sep-24 04-Oct-24 $1,045.44 $1,045.44 

137 Clarification to handrail corners Coordination Approved 24-Jul-24

138 Composity Slab Crack remediation Coordination Approved 14-Sep-24

142 Ductwork revisions at Chapel 1027 Coordination Approved 12-Sep-24

141 Revised - Location of Electrical Panel in Janitor Rooms Coordination Approved 01-Oct-24

143 Revision to bulkheads at corridor 1032 Coordination Approved 17-Sep-24

133 146 Revision to balcony ceiling panels at tapered beams Owner Requested Approved 21-Oct-24 22-Oct-24 29-Oct-24 $0.00 $0.00 

144R(2) Revised (2) - Temporary link connection details coordination Approved 16-Oct-24

145 Clarification to boiler breaker feeds and temp link heaters coordination Approved 08-Oct-24

146 Revise rating at column 12.1-F coordination Approved 10-Oct-24

177 141R 145 Reframing and hardware revision relative to SI#141R coordination Approved 08-Oct-24 15-Oct-24 21-Oct-24 $1,364.66 $1,364.66 

147 Clarification to typical windows drainage coordination Approved 22-Oct-24

181 181 134 147 Add Handrails to link Architect ommission Approved 20-Nov-24 20-Nov-24 20-Nov-24 $5,268.77 $5,268.77 

148 Clarification to shaft bottom closure location coordination Approved 30-Oct-24

149 Clarification to penthouse glycol tank wiring coordination Approved 06-Nov-24

150 Revision to fireplace hearth stone in 5115 coordination Approved 19-Nov-24

151 Cancelled: Miscellaneous Structural Clarifications coordination Approved 02-Apr-25

180R 144R2 148 Temporary Link Connection details coordination Approved 15-Nov-24 02-Dec-24 10-Dec-24 $10,226.30 $10,226.30 

152 Revisions breakers and raceway at IT Room 6003 coordination Approved 20-Nov-24

149 Gas detection controller in generator room 6011 coordination Approved 02-Dec-24 02-Dec-24 10-Dec-24 $3,942.40 $3,942.40 

153 Austco Nurse Call alert info coordination Approved 09-Dec-24

154 Revised FHC location main floor phase 1 coordination Approved 11-Dec-24

135 152 Modify alternating tread ladder construction in penthouse coordination Approved 12-Dec-24 30-Jan-25 07-Feb-25 $5,830.00 $5,830.00 

155 Revision to dryer surround opening dimensions coordination Approved 06-Jan-25

150 Add Handrails to link (2nd part) coordination Approved 17-Dec-25 15-Dec-25 20-Dec-25 $4,548.50 $4,548.50 

136 151 Temporary cladding at lounge bump-out to existing construction coordination Approved 06-Jan-25 30-Jan-25 13-Jan-25 $12,562.00 $12,562.00 

156 Revisions 2 Clarification to gypsum ceilings in stairwells coordination Approved 11-Mar-25

157 Clarification to balcony soffit heights coordination Approved 14-Jan-25

137 154 Provide cricketed backslope insulation between ERV#1 and MUA#2 Percon Approved 15-Jan-25 30-Jan-25 07-Feb-25 $1,650.00 $1,650.00 

138 155 Provide keypad locksets on Resident laundry room doors Owner Requested Approved 16-Jan-25 30-Jan-25 07-Feb-25 $4,455.00 $4,455.00 

139 Cancelled - Provide range hood in gathering space kitchen 5116a Owner Requested Approved 11-Mar-25

140 153 Millwork revisions for site coordination issues coordination Approved 22-Jan-25 30-Jan-25 07-Feb-25 $1,670.35 $1,670.35 

191 158 159 Furr-out around FA panel in Med room 1070 coordination Approved 30-Jan-25 11-Mar-25 25-Mar-25 $1,247.07 $1,247.07 

159 Revision to ceilings bulkheads in corridor 5082 and 5099 coordination Approved 03-Mar-25

160 Revised - Ceiling height in corridor 5081 coordination Approved 30-Jan-25

141 157 Modify stainless steel count 2078 coordination Approved 10-Feb-25 05-Mar-25 13-Mar-25 $0.00 $0.00 

161 Revision to fireplace hearth stone in 5115 coordination Approved 12-Feb-25

192 142 160 Revised counter support at M60 under counter fridge Owner Requested Approved 12-Feb-25 11-Mar-25 25-Mar-25 $2,694.91 $2,694.91 

193R1 143 165 Temporary Cladding of columns exposed to exterior in P1 coordination Approved 12-Feb-25 08-Apr-25 15-Apr-25 $10,961.13 $10,963.13 

162 Revision to shower floor drains for sheet flooring coordination Approved 12-Feb-25

194R1 144 158 Modify rated wall at Room 5115 to suit piping coordination Approved 25-Mar-25 25-Mar-25 25-Mar-25 $4,923.41 $4,923.41 

163 Revisions to door frame protection coordination Approved 01-Feb-29

164 Revised 2: Relocate Shower room storage cabinets coordination Approved 24-Mar-25

145 Cancelled:Add LCD Austco annunciator displays for nurse call in P1 coordination Approved 15-Apr-25

165 Clarifications on IT room 6003 panel terminations and rack equipment locations coordination Approved 25-Feb-25

196 146 162 Horizontal cable management and access control data drop coordination Approved 24-Feb-25 01-Apr-25 01-Apr-25 $4,105.20 $4,105.20 

166 Drywall bulkhead control joint locations coordination Approved 03-Mar-25

38



167 Clarification to expansion joint details coordination Approved 04-Mar-25

147 Cancelled: Add closure panel to back pans on 3rd floor curtainwall coordination Approved 07-Apr-25

202R1 148 166 Door hardware revisions 

Owner 

request/coordination Approved 10-Mar-25 09-Apr-25 15-Apr-25 $20,851.60 $20,851.60 

168 Revised Kitchen hood in gathering Space kitchen coordination Approved 11-Mar-25

169 Install heat pump in shower room 5105 coordination Approved 11-Mar-25

195R1 149 164R2 161 Revised: Filter panels and relocated upper cabinets of SI#164 Revised 2 coordination Approved 24-Mar-25 18-Mar-25 04-Apr-25 $804.65 $804.65 

197 150R 171 163 Wall closure at soffit construction in Janitor Room 1065 coordination Approved 20-Mar-25 02-Apr-25 02-Apr-25 $3,241.99 $3,241.99 

170 Revision to cubical curtains in tub rooms coordination Approved 17-Mar-25

172 Closure at hopper fixture SS#2 base to wall coordination Approved 20-Mar-25

151 Revise fireplace hearth material coordination Approved 24-Mar-25

199 152 164 Revised Sentronic closers to 24V coordination Approved 24-Mar-25 07-Apr-25 07-Apr-25 $6,264.50 $6,264.50 

153 167 Revision to ceiling in Lobby 5002 coordination Approved 25-Mar-25 09-Apr-25 15-Apr-25 $0.00 $0.00 

175 Installation of TV mounts in residents rooms as per contract Approved 15-Apr-25

174 Clarification on location of fireplace switches coordination Approved 02-Apr-25 $55,094.46 $55,096.46 

173 169 Revision to BF operator buttons coordination Approved 02-Apr-25 02-Apr-25 05-May-25 $856.90 $856.90 

154 168 Cabinet lock revisions for keying owner request Approved 17-Apr-25 17-Apr-25 27-Apr-25 $8,505.09 $8,505.09 

176 Austco nomenclature and IT info clarification coordination Approved 28-Apr-25

155 Revision to storm line serving existing building at Apple Wing Design Improvement Approved 01-May-25

177 Ceiling height revisions in corridors 1030 1032 coordination Approved 06-May-25

178 Comms cabinet in block c level 5 Design Improvement Approved 14-May-25

179 Clarifications for interferences at clean-out access doors coordination Approved 14-May-25

180 Clarification for quantity of lockers in staff lockers coordination Approved 14-May-25

156 Revise colour on P2 exterior louvre Coordination Approved 22-May-25

157 171 Revised Temporary fire department connection extension

Authority Having 

Jurisdiction Approved 23-May-25 23-May-25 04-Jun-25 $9,400.60 $9,400.60 

209 158 172 Add Smoke detector in control room 1020

Authority Having 

Jurisdiction Approved 29-May-25 29-May-25 23-Jun-25 $1,578.50 $1,578.50 

181 Delete light fixtures over M17 in rooms 1064 and 1075 coordination Approved 29-May-25

207 170 Extend thresholds at balcony doors coordination Approved 29-May-25 29-May-25 02-Jun-25 $1,650.00 $1,650.00 

211 159 4 173 Relocate P3 fire hydrant to P1 Coordination Approved 04-Jun-25 04-Jun-25 23-Jun-25 $20,973.70 $20,973.70 

160 1 P1 temporary exit signage Coordination Approved 11-Jun-25 17-Jun-25 18-Jun-25

161 2 Flow switch, supervised valve and ATS wiring revision Coordination Approved 11-Jun-25 17-Jun-25 18-Jun-25

212 162 174 Stairwell signage revision Coordination Approved 12-Jun-25 30-Jun-25 08-Jul-25 $2,005.58 $2,005.58 

163 Add countertop infill at rethern ovens in servery millwork Coordinaton Approved 13-Jun-25

164 3 Relocate main floor pot lights conflicting with memory box millwork Coordination not approved 17-Jun-25

165 Additional heaters in temporary space transition areas coordination under review 08-Jul-25

$2,595,968.92 $2,561,321.77 

145

Total - As of Issue Date

39



OPERATIONS UPDATE 
 
 

July 17, 2025 - Page 1 of 4 

Board of Management Meeting 
July 17, 2025 

 
CLINCAL SERVICES – Mel Cross, Acting Director of Care 
This reporting period has been marked by a continued commitment to resident safety, process 
improvement, and staff stabilization. Clinical operations have remained steady, supported by 
strong collaboration across front-line teams and leadership. Our collective efforts remain centered 
on delivering holistic, resident-focused care that supports quality of life and clinical excellence. 

 
Critical Incidents Summary 

Since our last report ending June 16th, we have had an additional 6 critical incidents in the month of June. 
Two of which were unfounded.  

 
❖ Outbreak: 1 incident 
❖ Alleged Staff-to-Resident Abuse: 1 incident 
❖ Fall with Injury: 1 incident 
❖ Written Complaint Regarding Resident Care: 1 incident 
❖ Missing Narcotic: 1 incident 
❖ Misappropriation of Resident’s Money: 1 incident 

 
Details & Follow-up: 
❖ Outbreak: 

Enteric outbreak on Apple Street. Total number of affected residents was 5 (50 resident unit). 
Initiated June 21st, closed June 30th. 

❖ Alleged Staff-to-Resident Abuse: 
Inappropriate comment made toward resident by PSW. Complaint was validated. PSW served a 
suspension and was required to complete training 

❖ Fall with Injury: 
Resident received appropriate assessment and care. Subsequently transferred to hospital for 
additional assessment and treatment. Care plan updated. 

❖ Written Complaint: 
Amicable resolution achieved after investigation and follow-up between family and manger. 

❖ Missing Narcotic: 
Missing medication was eventually located; the CI was amended to reflect this outcome.  

❖ Misappropriation of Resident’s Money: 
Resident alleges there was money in an envelope a month prior that was now missing. Accusation 
has been unfounded despite an investigation.  

 
Other Clinical Updates 
 Staffing & Leadership Updates 
❖ With our current IPAC Lead, Ellen Whittaker, retiring this summer we held an interview process 

and have since offered full time employment to one of the candidates to become our new IPAC 
Lead. We will also be seeking to hire a qualified individual as an IPAC assistant to help bolster our 
IPAC processes. 

  

40



OPERATIONS UPDATE 
 
 

July 17, 2025 - Page 2 of 4 

 

❖ We are working with the CUPE union to finalize our line selection process as we work to have 
lines posted for the staff to bid into in preparation for the transition into our new building. 

 
❖ The RN’s and Clinical Leadership Team continue to work with Jayne Harvey as we strive to 

improve our leadership skills, ultimately improving processes and resident care.  

Clinical Practice 
We continue to work closely with our Medical Director and have been able to update some clinical 
policies and procedures coupled with new medical directives to help streamline care provision for 
our residents. Applicable education is being rolled out to ensure staff are knowledgeable in these 
areas.  
 
Looking Ahead 
❖ We continue to work closely with our staff in leadership positions helping to refine their 

leadership skills. 
❖ Striving to refine our education process with the goal to reach more staff more efficiently and 

provide high quality learning opportunities. 
❖ Ongoing recruitment for some outstanding positions. 
❖ Continued focus on building our team’s resilience and capacity as we strive to realign our 

staffing with the needs of our residents.  

Committed to ongoing excellence in care. 

CLINICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE – Kathryn MacDonald, RN, Manager of Clinical Quality Assurance 
As part of our ongoing commitment to quality improvement and resident safety, I am pleased to 
provide this update on recent activities and outcomes related to clinical quality assurance for the 
Home: 

Fall Prevention Initiatives 
In recent weeks, I delivered multiple fall prevention training sessions to members of the nursing and 
interdisciplinary teams. These sessions focused on our revised Fall Prevention Policy, ensuring that 
all team members are aligned with current best practices and proactive risk reduction strategies. 
In addition to the training, we have explored collaboration with the Aging Research Trial Group, who 
presented their PREVENT Program—a research initiative dedicated to improving outcomes for older 
adults, particularly in reducing the risk of hip fractures. We are currently evaluating the feasibility of 
participating in this innovative trial. 

Fall Statistics Overview 

We continue to monitor our fall data closely as part of our quality indicators: 

• June 2025: 62 falls (identical to June 2024) 

• May 2025: 61 falls (down from 94 in May 2024) 

• April 2025: 72 falls (compared to 67 in April 2024) 

41



OPERATIONS UPDATE 
 
 

July 17, 2025 - Page 3 of 4 

While April showed a slight increase compared to last year, May’s significant reduction highlights 
progress in our efforts. These fluctuations reinforce the importance of our continued focus on fall 
prevention strategies and staff education. 

Redevelopment and Environmental Improvements 
As we move into our redevelopment phase, we are optimistic about the impact that a modernized 
environment will have on resident safety. Currently, overcrowded spaces and tight maneuvering 
areas, including some bathrooms and corridors, contribute to fall risks. The new design will offer 
improved accessibility and safer physical layouts, which we anticipate will support a reduction in fall 
related incidents and enhance quality of life for our residents. 
 
Hospital Emergency Department Transfers 
We’re proud to report continued progress in reducing hospital transfers, which reflects the growing 
clinical expertise of our team and the effectiveness of on-site medical interventions: 

• April 2025: 0 transfers 

• May 2025: 2 transfers 

• June 2025: 5 transfers 
(All significantly lower than prior years) 

This reduction is a strong indicator of clinical improvement and showcases the excellent work being 
done by our medical team, as well as the expanded skill sets of our registered staff. Interventions 
such as bladder scanning, IV therapy, and ECG monitoring have greatly improved our capacity to 
manage complex clinical situations within the home, reducing the need for emergency transfers. 

Clinical Documentation Improvements 
We have also streamlined the auditing process for incident reports and progress notes. A live shared 
document is now used by registered staff, allowing for real time updates, follow ups, and 
collaborative monitoring of incidents and trends. 
 
In Summary 
These quality indicators reflect a facility wide commitment to resident centered care, proactive risk 
mitigation, and team based clinical excellence. As we continue to grow into our redeveloped space 
and embrace new initiatives like PREVENT, I remain confident in our ability to improve outcomes 
even further. 
Wishing all Board members a happy and restful summer and thank you for your ongoing support of 
our care programs and quality initiatives. 

STAFFING – Tiffany Chapman, HR Coordinator 
Students 
❖ Active/In Progress:  PSW Living Classroom, Canadore PSWs, CTS PSWs – 1 on 1 Preceptorships 

in progress 
 

 Staffing June 2025 
❖ Hired - 14 Total (5 PSWs, 4 RPNs, 5 FSWs, 2 HSKPERS, 1 Activities) 
❖ Terminated/Resigned/Retired – 7 total (1 Unit Manager, 1 PSW Day Program, 2 PSWs, 1 RPN, 1 

housekeeper, 1 FSW) 
Vacancies as of July 10/25 

42



OPERATIONS UPDATE 
 
 

July 17, 2025 - Page 4 of 4 

❖ PSW Vacancies as of today – 1 temp FT, 9 temp PT, 2 perm PT– all lines posted – actively 
recruiting/interviewing.  

❖ RPN Vacancies as of today – 3 temp FT, 1 temp PT, 1 perm PT 
❖ Dietary vacancy as of today – 2 perm PT, 5 temp PT 
❖ Housekeeping vacancy as of today – 2 perm PT, 7 temp PT 
❖ Activities Vacancies – 1 temp PT 
❖ PSW Day Program – 1 temp PT, 1 perm PT 
❖ PSW Day Program, PSW CSS jobs posted, actively recruiting 
 

Other 
❖ Master Lines created for redevelopment - ALL lines being posted for redevelopment tentatively 

July 21, 2025 
❖ Recruiting for Nurse Practitioner  
❖ Active Non-Union Vacancies –IPAC Support Assistant, Scheduling Coordinator (x2) 

 

HOUSEKEEPING & NUTRITION & FOOD SERVICES – Trina Milne, Manager 
❖ Continued weekly meetings withy Meal Suite new menu system 
❖ Dietary meetings to go over new Fall/Winter Menu 
❖ Ordering supplies for new building 
❖ New laundry chemicals installed July 8, 2025 in current building as well as new building. 
❖ Conducting interviews for more housekeeping staff 

 

RESIDENT FAMILY NAVIGATOR –Alysia Loyer 
Diligently working on the upcoming move. We had four permanent admissions & 2 short stay respite 
admissions. I've been working on rostering Dr. Gauthier to residents in Maple St. and providing messaging 
to families about the upcoming move as able 
 

COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICES –Cheryl Hamilton, CSS Manager 
❖ CSS has been on a steady pace over the past few months.  We have had an increase of 5 PSW’s 

over the past year which has allowed us to bring our Assisted Living numbers up to 42-44 clients.   
❖ We have a PSW who is leaving CSS so are in the process of interviewing candidates and have 

received a number of resumes so this is good (assuming they are appropriate candidates).  We 
have had an ongoing challenge of PSW interest in the community and finding suitable candidates.  

❖ We have had challenges with a number of Assisted Living clients being hospitalized all at the 
same time which means a drop in client hours and we cannot replace clients until we know they 
cannot come home. 

❖ We are fully staffed in our Home Help Homemaking program, and it continues to see a very 
lengthy waitlist for services.  We continue to receive many referrals for all programs.  

❖ The Cassellhome Van has been seeing some increased repair bills but is running efficiently and is 
a very busy service.   

❖ No major health and safety issues currently   
❖ We did purchase some laundry carts to make it easier for staff having to carry loads of laundry 

for longer distances and this is working well.   

All in all, CSS is operating smoothly and with no significant changes at this time. 

43



From: Tracy Cannon
To: Tracy Cannon
Subject: FW: J.R. Booth Park: Just wonderful!
Date: Tuesday, September 2, 2025 10:45:48 AM

 
Get Outlook for iOS

To: Mayor Ethel LaValley <mayor@southalgonquin.ca>
Subject: J.R. Booth Park: Just wonderful!

 
Good evening, Ms La Valley.
 
I'm not that fluent in english, since it is not my mother tongue, but I'll do my best.
 
My wife and I stopped for an hour at the wonderful J.R. Booth Park, on our way home
from a road trip through Ontario and we were impressed with the quality of the site. 
 
The heat was scorching, the wind was still and we were desperately looking for shade
when we came across that lovely park.
 
Since you already know how nice the place is, I just wanted to remind your citizens how
blessed they are to have such a nice site. 
 
Because on that wonderful and hot summer day, we were alone. 
 
Of course, we didn't mind having the place all for ourselves but I felt a little sad to see
such a nice place unused by children and their parents on vacation. 
 
Having such a nice spot in your community should never ever be taken for granted. I've
seen municipal parks by the hundreds and very few were as charming and well
maintained as yours. 
 
Since these things do not get done by themselves, your team and yourself should be
praised for being such good caretakers of that lovely site. 
 
So if ever the question "Is it worth all the effort and the money" came to your mind, the
answer should be a resounding YES! 
 
And I just hope that your fellow citizens enjoy the park as much as we did. 

44



45



 

2025 3RD Quarter Progress Update 
 

Suspect Drug Toxicity Deaths 
 

 
 

Demographics 

Fatal opioid overdoses are significantly higher in males than in females. Currently it's a ratio of 9:1 

and all but 2 of the suspect deceased were in the age range of 40-69. 
 

Opioid-Related Emergency Department Visits 
 

 

As of September 7, 2025, there have been 29 opioid-related emergency department visits to 

RCD hospitals. For the same period this represents a 61% decrease when compared to 2024 and 

a 41% decrease when compared to 2023. 

 

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 25 27 29 31 33 35

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

V
is

it
s

Week Number in 2025

2025 Weekly Opioid Overdose Emergency 
Department Visits in Renfrew County and District 

 

8

25

16

20

69

37

28

13

4

78

10

10

9

29

2023 Q1

2023 Q2

2023 Q3

2023 Q4

2023 Total

2024 Q1

2024 Q2

2024 Q3

2024 Q4

2024 Total 

2025 Q1

2025 Q2

2025 Q3

2025 Q4

2025 Total 

Opioid-Related Emergency Department Visits to RCD Hospitals (2023 - 2025)

As of September 11, 2025, there have 

been 10 suspect drug toxicity deaths in 

RCD. For the same period this represents 

a 56% decrease when compared to 2024 

and a 67% decrease when compared to 

2023. 

 

 

1

9

2025 Suspect Drug Toxicity Deaths by Sex

Female Male
 

1
1

2

3

3

2025 Suspect Drug Toxicity Deaths by 
Age Group

20-29 30-39 40-49 50-59 60-69 70+

46



 
Renfrew County and District Naloxone Distribution 

Naloxone distribution for both the Ontario Naloxone Program and the Ontario Naloxone 

Program for Pharmacies lags behind the pace set in 2024 in Renfrew County and District. This is 

likely due in part to many of the 2024 doses remaining with people, as the expiry date is 

generally 2 years following distribution.  

Communication 

RCDDS Progress Updates continue to be shared with the media, on the webpage and via social 

media. During the third quarter the following activities were implemented: 

✓ Progress Update Social Media 

Campaign 

✓ Media Release Update 

✓ MyBarrysBayNow Interview  

✓ Progress Section Added to Webpage 

 

Emerging Evidence and Resources 

Reported drug toxicity deaths dropped in parts of Canada in 2024 – But what’s 

behind the numbers? 

Recent Trends in Opioid-Related Toxicity Deaths in Canada: Examining a 

Potential Decrease 

Anti-Stigma Toolkit 

 

2796

4452

1804

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

2023 2024 2025

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

D
o

s
e

s

Ontario Naloxone Program Distribution                                    
(2023-2025)

 

5784

8582

2598

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

2023 2024 2025

N
um

be
r o

f D
os

es

ONPP Naloxone Distribution                                        
(Until June 30, 2025)

 

47

https://www.rcdhu.com/rcdds/
https://www.rcdhu.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/08/Media-Release-August-07-2025-Local-Drug-Strategy-Making-Progress-A-Harm-Reduction-Pillar-Update.pdf
https://www.mybarrysbaynow.com/40070/news/health-care/renfrew-county-district-health-unit/renfrew-county-drug-overdose-cases-drop-but-even-one-is-too-many/
https://www.mybarrysbaynow.com/40070/news/health-care/renfrew-county-district-health-unit/renfrew-county-drug-overdose-cases-drop-but-even-one-is-too-many/
https://www.rcdhu.com/rcdds/
https://www.catie.ca/prevention-in-focus/reported-drug-toxicity-deaths-dropped-in-parts-of-canada-in-2024-but-whats
https://www.catie.ca/prevention-in-focus/reported-drug-toxicity-deaths-dropped-in-parts-of-canada-in-2024-but-whats
https://www.ccsa.ca/sites/default/files/2025-08/CCENDU-Newsletter-Issue-6-en.pdf
https://www.ccsa.ca/sites/default/files/2025-08/CCENDU-Newsletter-Issue-6-en.pdf
https://www.antistigma.ca/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

For the purposes of this communication, unsheltered homelessness refers to individuals 
who are living in places not intended for permanent human habitation (e.g., streets, parks, 
vehicles, abandoned buildings; while encampments refer to groups of visible structures 
(e.g., tents, shacks) where two or more individuals are staying.  

 

 

  
 

 
  

48



Municipalities are reminded of the district-wide unsheltered person response protocol for 
Nipissing District and are encouraged to contact True Self Debwewendizwin if 
unsheltered homelessness or encampments are identified or suspected within their 
municipality at any time, including leading up to, 
Enumeration: 
 
True Self Debwewendizwin Peer Outreach support Team (POST) 
Monday to Friday 
8:00 am to 8:00 pm 
Saturday and Sunday  
10:00 am to 6:00 pm 
(705) 498 9482 
For after-hours calls please leave a message indicating the location of the site and the 
number of people living there. 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



October 1, 2025  

MOTIONS OF COUNCIL  

 
 

Moved by:    Seconded by:                             Res. # 25- 

WHEREAS wind-powered energy companies have recently shown renewed interest in 

establishing operations within the Township of South Algonquin; and 

 

WHEREAS the Township previously enacted a resolution in 2008 (Res.08-489) implementing a 

ten (10) year moratorium on wind power energy projects, which has since lapsed; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council for the Corporation of the Township of 

South Algonquin hereby declares a new ten (10) year moratorium on wind power energy projects 

within the Township. 

 

AND FURTHER THAT, in the event of any pressure or directive from the Provincial or Federal 

Government regarding the installation of wind turbines within the Township of South 

Algonquin, the Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin hereby declares 

itself to be an unwilling host. 

 

Moved by:   Seconded by:                            Res. # 25- 

THAT: Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin authorizes staff to 

proceed with the request to purchase the Shore Road Allowance in front of PLAN M345 LOT 22 

PCL;21613 NIP, Sabine Ward, locally known as 23 Windmill Point Lane adjacent to McKenzie 

Lake.   

 

Moved by:   Seconded by:                            Res. # 25- 

THAT: Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin authorizes staff to 

proceed with the request to purchase the Shore Road Allowance in front of CON 6 PT LOT 6 PT 

LOT 7 PT;BLOCK A M463 PART 1 RP;36R6634 PCL 17978 PCL 26461, Airy Ward, locally 

known as 50 Galeairy Lake Road adjacent to Galeairy Lake.   

 

Moved by: Seconded by:                  Res # 25- 

THAT: Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin authorizes staff to 

proceed with the request to purchase the Shore Road Allowance in front of CON 6 PT LOT 6 

PCL 17883 NIP, Airy Ward, locally known as 72 Galeairy Lake Road adjacent to Galeairy Lake.   

 

Moved by: Seconded by:                  Res # 25- 

THAT: Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin authorizes staff to 

proceed with the request to purchase the Shore Road Allowance in front of CON 6 PT LOT 6 

PCL 16758 NIP, Airy Ward, locally known as 79 Galeairy Lake Road adjacent to Galeairy Lake. 

 

Moved by:                                        Seconded by:                  Res # 25- 

THAT: Council for the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin declares the 2001 

Volvo G740VHP Motor Grader surplus and for it to be listed for sale on Gov. Deals. 

 

64



COUNCIL MEETING 

October 1, 2025 

By-Laws:

Moved by:  Seconded by:   Res. # 25- 

THAT:  

1) By-Law 2025-846 to adopt a Burning By-Law

3) By-Law 2025-847 to Confirm the Proceedings of Council

BE READ A FIRST TIME AND BE DEEMED READ A SECOND TIME 

Moved by: Seconded by:  Res. # 25- 

THAT:  

1) By-Law 2025-846 to adopt a Burning By-Law

3) By-Law 2025-847 to Confirm the Proceedings of Council

BE READ A THIRD TIME AND PASSED 

65



 

 

CORPORATION OF THE 

TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH ALGONQUIN 

BY-LAW NO. 2025-846 

Being a bylaw to regulate Open Air Fires, Incinerator Fires and Outdoor Furnace 

Fires in order that ratepayers may make use of fire without detriment to themselves 

or their neighbours or the environment. 

 

WHEREAS pursuant to Section 7.1, paragraph (a) and (b) of the Fire Protection and 

Prevention Act, 1997, S.O. 1997, c. 4 as amended, Councils may pass bylaws to 

establish regulations and precautions for the setting of fires, including the prevention 

of the spreading of fires; and regulating the setting of open-air fires, including 

establishing the times during which open air fires may be set; 

 

AND WHEREAS The Municipal Act, 2001 Subsection 10(2) 6 and 8 authorizes a 
Municipality to pass bylaws respecting the health, safety and well-being of persons and 
the protection of persons and property; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Forest Fires Prevention Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.F.24 and O. Reg. 
207.96 provide rules for outdoor burning within the Fire Regions;  
 
AND WHEREAS The Ontario Fire Code O. Reg. 213/07 Division B Article 2.4.4.4 
provides that open fires shall not take place unless it has been approved or the open-air 
burning consists of a small, confined fire that is used to cook food on a grill, barbecue or 
spit, commensurate with the type and quantity of food being cooked and supervised at all 
times; 
 
AND WHEREAS Council deems it desirable to regulate and prescribe conditions for 
open air fires within the Township of South Algonquin as per the Forest Fire 
Prevention Act, R.S.O. 1990. 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of South 
Algonquin 
enacts as follows: 

 
1. SHORT TITLE 

 
This bylaw may be cited as the "Burning Bylaw" 

 
2. DEFINITIONS 

 
Adverse effect: means one (1) or more of: 

I. Impairment of the quality of the natural environment for any use 

that can be made of it 

II. Injury or damage to property or to plant or animal life 
III. Harm or material discomfort to any person 
IV. An adverse effect on the health of any person or the 

impairment of the safety of any person 

V. Rendering any property or plant or animal life unfit for use by man 
VI. Loss of enjoyment of normal use of property 
VII. Interference with the normal conduct of business, and 
VIII. Nuisances including, but not limited to, excessive smoke, 

odour, dust, airborne sparks, embers or reduced visibility of a 
traveled portion of any public or private driveway or roadway 

Approved: means approved in the sole and absolute discretion of the Fire Chief or 
his/her designate. 
 
Barbeque: means an appliance or structure designed and intended solely for the 
cooking of food in the open air, including hibachi, and any other similar device, but 
does not include devices designed for personal warmth such as firepits or campfires. 
 
Burn Barrel: means a metal barrel in sound condition no larger than a 45-gallon drum 
with a heavy-duty screen with mesh size not greater than 7 mm (1/4”) over the top to 
prevent debris from flying out of the barrel. Vent holes must be punched in the side for 
ventilation, and drainage holes in the bottom with adequate clearance from 
surrounding vegetation or structures. 
 
Campfire: means a fire area no larger than 100 cm in diameter, supervised at all 
times by a competent person. 

66



 

 

 
Class "A" Materials: means combustible materials that are generally carbon based 
such as wood, paper, leaves, and are of a less toxic nature than petroleum-based 
combustibles such as plastics. 
 
Competent Person: means a person that has knowledge of any potential or actual 
danger to health or safety (that may be caused by fire). 
 
Council: means the municipal council for the Township of South Algonquin. 
 
Day Burning: means the use of open fire between two hours after sunrise to two 
hours before sunset, (9am to 6pm). 

 
Fire Ban: means a complete ban of all open-air fires, whether put in place by the 
Township of South Algonquin or the Province of Ontario through the Ministry of 
Natural Resources and Forestry. 
 
Fire Chief: means the person appointed by Council to act as Fire Chief of the Fire 
Department for the Municipality and who is ultimately responsible to Council as 
defined in the Fire Protection and Prevention Act, 1997, S.O.1997, c.4, may also be 
referred to as the Chief Fire Official. 
 
Fire Department: means the Township of South Algonquin Fire Department. 
 
Fire Region: means that part of the province of Ontario as described in O. Reg. 
207/96 under the Forest Fires Prevention Act. The Township of South Algonquin is 
located in the East Fire Region. 
 
Fire Season: means that period from April 1 to October 31 when open fire is more 
strictly regulated due to the increased hazard and potential for loss. 
 
Flying Lantern: means a small hot air balloon or other device designed to carry an 
open flame as an airborne light, also known as Sky Lantern, Chinese Lantern, 
Kongming Lantern or Wish Lantern, or other similar device which are devices 
containing a fuel pack, which fuel pack is usually a petroleum or wax based fuel that 
when lit causes the lantern to rise. 
 
Incinerator: means an enclosed device used to burn wood, shavings, leaves, and 
other Class "A" combustibles in an open area. 
 
Municipality: means the municipality of South Algonquin and may also be referred to 
as the “Township”. 
 
Municipal Bylaw Enforcement Officer: means a person appointed by Council under 
section 15 of the Police Services Act R.S.O. 1990, c.P.15 to enforce the Municipality’s 
by-laws. 
 
Open Air Fire: means a fire, which is not contained within a structure, which is 
adequately designed and constructed for the purpose, such as a barbecue or 
incinerator constructed to prevent the spread of fire from the contents thereof. 
 
Owner includes: 

I. the registered owner of the property in question as revealed in 
the Land Registry Office of the Ministry of Consumer and 
Commercial Relations, 

II. any occupant of the property in question with authority to act on 
behalf of the registered owner, 

III. any person authorized by the registered owner to act on his or 
her behalf, 

IV. and any mortgagor or receiver and manager or trustee in 
bankruptcy with possession and control of the property. 

 
Outdoor Wood Burning Furnace: means a device used to burn wood set adjacent to 
and exterior to a building to provide heat to that building. 

 
Person: means any individual, partnership, group or association, organization, 
company, corporation or cooperative. 

 
Restricted Fire Zone: means complete bans of all open-air fire in the Fire Region and 
is enacted by the Ministry of Natural Resources & Forestry (MNRF) under the Forest 
Fire Prevention Act and may be enforced by the MNRF or the Township. 

67



 

 

Wood by-products: means wood or wood product, including tree trunks, tree 
branches, brush, that do not contain chromated copper arsenate, ammoniacal copper 
arsenate, pentachlorophenol, creosote, pesticides, paint, or any other wood treatment 
chemical and from which easily removable hardware, fittings and attachments, unless 
they are predominantly wood or cellulose, have been removed, plywood or composite 
wood products containing varnish or glue, an upholstered article i.e. Couches, or an 
article to which a rigid surface treatment is affixed or adhered, i.e. Countertops, unless 
the rigid surface treatment is predominantly wood or cellulose. 
 

3. BURNING RESTRICTIONS 
 

3.1 
I. No person shall start a fire outdoors unless conditions will allow the fire to 

burn safely from start to extinguishment.  
II. No person who starts a fire outdoors shall leave the fire without leaving a 

competent person in charge of the fire. 
III. A person who starts a fire outdoors or, if the person who started the fire is 

not present, a person in charge of a fire outdoors shall take all necessary 
steps to tend the fire, keep the fire under control, and extinguish the fire 
before leaving the site.   

IV. No person shall start or tend a fire outdoors except on land they legally 
occupy, or they have the permission of the person who has lawful 
occupation of the property on which the fire is started.  

V. Persons setting any fire within the Municipality shall ensure that they can, if 
needed, summon assistance from the Fire Department without delay. 

 
3.2  All persons setting an open-air fire in the Municipality shall first obtain a permit 
online at https://safd.burnpermits.com/, which may be granted if the following conditions 
are satisfied:  

 
I. A competent person will be on site to monitor the fire from start to 

extinguishment. 
II. The person is burning piled wood, brush, leaves or discarded wood by-

products. 
III. The material is burned in a single pile that is less than two metres in 

diameter and less than two metres high. 
IV. The fire is started not earlier than two hours before sunset and is 

extinguished not later than two hours after sunrise the following day, or 
earlier, during the fire season, unless day burning is permitted. 

V. The fire is at least two metres from any flammable materials. 
VI. The person tending the fire has tools or water adequate to contain the fire 

within the fire site.  
 

3.3 An exception to 3.2 will be granted for a campfire, campfires are permitted 
without a permit provided all other conditions under 3.1 are met. Property owners may 
register online to receive messages regarding burning conditions at   
https://safd.burnpermits.com/. 
 
3.4 Notwithstanding 3.2 and 3.3 above, no person shall set out an open-air fire 
during a MNRF restricted fire zone or a Level 4 municipal fire ban. 
 
3.5 Notwithstanding 3.2 and 3.3 above, no person shall continue to burn when wind 
conditions or other factors cause any or all of the following: 

I. a decrease in visibility on any highway or roadway; 
II. a rapid spread of fire through grass or brush areas; 
III. an adverse effect on neighbouring lands or persons. 

 
3.6 Any fire out of control shall be reported to the fire department by calling 911. A 
person who sets out an open-air fire and loses control of the said fire is required by this 
by-law to report the fire and loss of control to the fire department Immediately by calling 
911. 
 
3.7 The Chief Fire Official or designate is authorized to order any person to 
extinguish any fire or to cause such a fire to be extinguished when there is a breach of 
any provisions of this by-law, or, where in the opinion of the Chief Fire Official or 
designate, there is a danger of such fire spreading or causing the spread of fire or 
otherwise endangering life or property, and the person shall comply with any such 
order. 
 
3.8 A person setting out a fire contrary to the provisions of this bylaw shall 
immediately extinguish such fire and a person setting out a fire which they may be 

68

https://safd.burnpermits.com/
https://safd.burnpermits.com/


 

 

unable to prevent from spreading shall immediately extinguish such fire, and in default 
of doing so, this 
Township may do so at that person's expense and this Township may recover the 
expense in doing so by action, or the same may be recovered in like manner as 
municipal taxes. 
 
3.9 Notwithstanding any other Section of this Bylaw, the Fire Chief or designate 
may authorize a controlled burn of brush piles at a Municipal Landfill Site provided that, 
in their judgment,  

I. weather conditions are favorable to open air burning, 
II. there are competent Municipal employee(s) on had to perform the controlled burn, 

and 
III. that the perimeter of the area to be burned has been cleared of flammable 

material. 
 
 

4. INCINERATORS / BURN BARRELS 

4.1  The installation, use and maintenance of incinerators or burn barrels for the 
burning of wood like materials, paper and other Class "A" materials within the 
Township will only be pursuant to the following criteria: 

 
I. Incineration must be undertaken through the use of an enclosed device and; 

II. Incinerators or burn barrels must be located at least 5 meters from any forest 
or any building and; 

III. Incinerators or burn barrels must be located at least 2 meters from any 
combustible material and; 

IV. Incinerators or burn barrels must be covered by mesh less than 7 millimeters 
(1/4”) in size and; 

V. Incinerators or burn barrels are subject to all the provisions of Part 3 - Burning 
Restrictions and: 

VI. Incinerators or burn barrels shall not be used during a fire ban. 
 

5.  OUTDOOR WOOD BURNING FURNACE FIRES 

 

5.1  An outdoor wood burning furnace shall be equipped with a spark arrestor on the 

flue when used during the fire season or any other time when in the opinion of the Chief 

Fire Official, sparks could contribute to the spread of fire. 

 

5.2  The outdoor wood burning furnace is subject to Sections 3.5 and 3.7 of this bylaw 

due to its unique burning characteristics, which can produce heavy volumes of smoke 

and/or sparks and cinders. 

 

5.3  The outdoor furnace shall not be used to burn garbage. It is designed to burn wood 

only. 

 

6. FLYING LANTERNS 

 

6.1  No person within the Township shall ignite or release an ignited Flying Lantern. Any 

person who ignites or releases a Flying Lantern and causes an open-air fire in the 

Township assumes full responsibility for fire control and shall: 

I. be responsible for any damage to property or injury to persons or animals 

occasioned by said fire; 

II. assumes full responsibility for fire control and may be liable for costs 

incurred by the Fire Department, including the costs of the personnel and 

equipment as authorized and set out in the Township Fees Bylaw in effect 

at the time of the incident and authorized by the Fire Chief or his or her 

designate. 

 

6.2  No person within the Township shall offer for sale, cause or permit to be sold, or 

sell any flying lanterns. 

 

7. WEATHER CONDITIONS 

 

7.1  No person shall set an open-air fire: 

I. under weather conditions that limit the rapid dissipation of smoke; 

II. when wind may cause unsafe conditions that may result in fire spread; 

III. under extremely dry or arid conditions; 

69



IV. when the Ministry of the Environment & Climate Change has issued a

Smog Advisory or Smog Alert applicable to the area;

V. when the Fire Chief has placed a ban on open air fires.

8. FIRE BAN

8.1 Fire Ban is enforced by the Chief Fire Official or designate under this by-law and 

the Fire Prevention and Protection Act.  Graduated Fire Restrictions have the intent to 

gradually reduce the number of permitted open air fires as outlined herein and will be 

enacted at the discretion of the Fire Chief. 

Level 1; no concern, issue burning permits, allow campfires 

Level 2; suspend issuance of new burning permits, campfires permitted 

Level 3; cancel all burning permits, campfires permitted in “organized campgrounds” as 

outlined in Schedule “B “of this by-law, 

Level 4; complete fire ban, campfires not permitted in “organized campgrounds” 

8.2 A Fire Ban may be enacted by the Municipality at the direction of the Chief Fire 

Official or by the Province at the direction of the Ministry of Natural Resources and 

Forestry. 

9. PENALTIES

9.1 Any person who contravenes any provision of this bylaw is guilty of an offence and 

liable to a fine not more than $2,000.00 exclusive of costs, under the Provincial Offenses 

Act, as per Schedule "A" attached. 

9.2  Any person who hinders or obstructs an enforcement officer or the Chief Fire 

Official or designate in their duty to enforce this bylaw may be guilty of an offence under 

this bylaw under the Provincial Offenses Act and/or this bylaw. 

10. EFFECTIVE

This Bylaw shall come into full force and effect upon the final passing hereof. 

And that By-Law 21-639 and any former Bylaws pertaining to this matter be hereby 

repealed. 

READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this 1st, day of October, 2025. 

______________________________ ______________________________ 

Mayor – Ethel LaValley CAO/Clerk-Treasurer – Bryan Martin 

READ A THIRD TIME AND PASSED AND ENACTED this 1st, day of October, 2025. 

______________________________ ______________________________ 

Mayor – Ethel LaValley CAO/Clerk-Treasurer – Bryan Martin 

70

By signing this by-law, Mayor LaValley has granted approval and will not exercise the 
power to veto this by-law under Strong Mayor Powers. 



TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH 

ALGONQUIN 

BY-LAW # 21-639 

SCHEDULE “A” 

Set Fine Schedule 

Part 1, Provincial Offences Act 

Item Short Form Wording Offence Creating 
Provision 

Set Fine (includes 
costs) 

1 Day Burning 3.2 (III) $250.00 

2 Failure to extinguish any fire 
as ordered by the Chief Fire 

Official or designate 

3.7 $250.00 

3 Operating an incinerator 
during a municipal fire ban 

4.1(VI) $250.00 

4 Failure to report a set fire out 
of control 

3.6 $250.00 

5 Burning garbage in an 
outdoor furnace 

5.3 $250.00 

6 Setting out an open-air 
fire during a fire ban 

3.4 $500.00 

7 Leave an open-air fire 
unattended or unsupervised 

3.1(II) 3.2(I) $250.00 

8 Set a Fire in unsafe weather 
conditions 

7.1 $250.00 

9 Burn in an unlawful burn 
barrel 

4.1 $250.00 

10 Open air fire causing 
adverse effect 

3.5 $250.00 

11 Ignite or release an ignited 
flying lantern 

6.1 $400.00 

12 Sell, cause or permit to be 
sold flying lanterns 

6.2 $400.00 

13 Burn material other than dry 
wood or wood by products 

Class “A” materials 

4.1 $400.00 

14 Hinder or obstruct 
enforcement officer 

9.2 $500.00 

71



TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH ALGONQUIN 

By-Law #21-639 

SCHEDULE “B” 

Outdoor Fires in Campgrounds During 
A Restricted Fire Zone 

ONTARIO REGULATION 207/96 
As Amended by Ontario Regulation 64/10 

"Regulations" means the regulations made under Forest Fires Prevention Act. 
R.S.O. 
1990.c.F.24,s.l. 

1. No person shall start a fire outdoors unless conditions will allow the fire to burn
safely from start to extinguishment. O. Reg. 207/96, s.1 (1)

2. A campground offers camping facilities to the public on a temporary basis and
meets all of the following criteria:

I. The campground allows camping only in cabins and designated
campsites, and all are accessible by motor vehicle as defined in the
Highway Traffic Act.

II. The campground does not allow campfires between 9 a.m. and 6 p.m.
III. The campground clearly posts the hours campfires will be allowed.
IV. The campground has printed information on safe campfires and

provides it to all of its guests.
V. The campground has adequate equipment to control and extinguish a

fire, that can be taken to any campsite or cabin within 10 minutes.
VI. The campground has on site at all times staff who are instructed in

the location and the use of the equipment described in 2.5.
VII. The campground has reliable two-way telecommunications equipment

to allow it to obtain assistance if a fire escapes control.

3. No person shall use a portable or permanent charcoal installation for cooking
or warmth in a restricted fire zone in a campground described in section 2 unless
all of the conditions in subsection (II) are met and all of the following conditions
are met:

I. The installation is designed to use commercially produced charcoal as
fuel, and

II. Commercially produced charcoal is used as the fuel, and
III. The owner or operator of the campground expressly permits a

charcoal installation to be used during a time when the campground is
in a restricted fire zone.

4. No person shall set a wood fire in a permanent fire installation in a campground
described in section 2 in a restricted fire zone unless all of the following conditions
are met:

I. The fire is contained in,
(a) an above ground fire grate or fireplace that is designed to burn wood

safely and that cannot be moved to an unsafe location, or 
(b) a pit in the ground that has fireproof walls and is designed to burn wood

72



safely. 
II. The fire is at least 3 metres from any forest or woodland, and the area within

the 3 
metre radius is completely free of flammable material, and 

III. The space immediately above the fire installation is at least 3 metres from
any 

overhanging vegetation, and 
IV. The owner or operator of the campground expressly permits the fire to be

set 
during a time when the campground is in a restricted fire zone. 

During a total fire ban no fires are permitted even for cooking or warmth, 
whether in a campground or not. 

73



CORPORATION OF THE 

TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH ALGONQUIN 

BY-LAW NO.  2025-847 

BEING A BY-LAW TO CONFIRM 

THE PROCEEDINGS OF COUNCIL 

WHEREAS Section 5(1) of the Municipal Act 2001, Chapter 25 and amendments thereto provides 

that the powers of a municipal corporation are to be exercised by its council; 

AND WHEREAS Section 5(3) of the Municipal Act 2001 Chapter 25 and amendments thereto 

provides that the powers of every council shall be exercised by By-Law; 

AND WHEREAS it is deemed necessary and expedient that the proceedings and actions of the 

Council of the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin be confirmed and adopted by By-

Law, for the regular meeting held on:    

October 1, 2025 

THEREFORE, the Council of the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin enacts as 

follows: 

1. THAT the action of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of South Algonquin in

respect to each recommendation contained in the reports of the Committees and in respect

to each motion, resolution and other action passed and taken by the Council at its said open

meeting, is hereby adopted, ratified and confirmed as if all such proceedings were expressly

embodied in this By-Law.

2. The Mayor or in her absence, the Presiding Officer of the Council and the proper officials

of the Municipality are hereby authorized and directed to do all things necessary to give

effect to the said action or to obtain approvals where required.

3. The Mayor or in his/her absence the Presiding Officer and the Clerk or in his/her absence

the other designated signing officer, are hereby directed to execute all documents required

by Statute to be executed by them, as may be necessary in that behalf and to affix the

Corporate Seal of the Municipality to all such documents.

4. THAT in the event any provision or provisions of this By-Law be deemed illegal or not

enforceable, it or they shall be considered separate and severable from the By-Law, and its

remaining provisions shall remain in force and be binding as though the said provision or

provisions had never been included.

READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME on October 1, 2025.

 ________________________       _______________________________ 

Ethel LaValley- Mayor Bryan Martin-CAO/Clerk Treasurer 

READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED AND ENACTED on October 1, 2025. 

_________________________   _______________________________ 

Ethel LaValley- Mayor    Bryan Martin-CAO/Clerk Treasurer    

By signing this by-law, Mayor LaValley has granted approval and will not exercise the power to 

veto this by-law under Strong Mayor Powers. 

74


	COUNCIL MEETING  Info Package.pdf
	1. CH - Board Meeting Minutes for Website - July 17 2025.pdf
	CH - Minutes - July 17, 2025
	Redevelopment Project Report - July 14 2025
	07-14-2025 Transition Planning Action Register
	CO Log July 14 2025
	Cassellholme Operations Update - July 17, 2025





